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Thank you for your lette ‘of gust, 1ink that,
I can only confirm that, so far as the Prime Minister's statemelt in

Parliament was concerned with my own part in the matter in question,
it had, of course, my full agreement.
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Chapman Pincher, Esq,,
Church House,

16 Church Street,
Kintbury,




10 DOWNING STREET

From the Principal Private Secretary

SIR ROBERT ARMSTRONG
CABINET OFFICE

"Their Trade is Treachery'

The Prime Minister has seen and noted
your minute '‘A05303 of 25 July 1981 and the
report on Chapman Pincher's sources which
you submitted with 1t.

I have sent a simple acknowledgement
to the Attorney General's minute of 17 July 1981,
a copy of which is attached. :

I am returning herewith the report on
Chapman Pincher's sources.

(@)

IURE

26 July 1981

SECRET




N

10 DOWNING STREET

fFrom the Principal Private Secretary 26 July 1981

Chapman Pincher's Sources

The Prime Minister has seen and noted
the Attorney General's minute of 17 July 1981
about the sources which Chapman Pincher used
in writing his book '"Their Trade is Treachery".

G A. WHITMCRE

Jim Nursaw, Esq.,
Law Officers' Department.

SECRET




Ref. AD05303

ME. WHITMORE

You asked for a note of elucidation on the Attorney General's minute of
17 July attached.
2y You will remember that, after the publication of Chapman Pincher's

book Their Trade is Treachery and the Prime Minister's statement of 26 March

about Sir Roger Hollis, the Prime Minister agreed that the Security Service
should conduct an investigation, with a view to finding out what were the sources
to which Chapman Pincher had had access when writing his material about

Sir Roger Hollis,

3. It is the report of that investigation to which the Attorney General is
referring in his manute of 17 July. I have now been sent a copy of the report,
and attach it herewith (for return please). It establishes the following points:

(a) The main source for the letter which Mr Jonathan Aitken MP
sent to the Prime Minister on 31 January 1980 was a former
member of the Security Service called Arthur Martin. He
was one of those who was not satisfied that Sir Roger Hollis
was innocent of treachery, and he says that he wanted to
make sure that the Prime Minister had been fully informed
about the suspicions of Sir Roger Hollis and the investigations
of them. He chose to go about this by simulating, and pro-

g A T

b o
viding the material for, Mr Aitken's letter; and the Prime

Minister's reply satisfied him that she had been properly

informed, He says, and the Security Service are satisfied,

that he was not a source for Chapman Pincher,
TRt

(b)

THIS IS A COPY. THE ORIGINAL 15

RETAINED UNDER SECTION 3 {4
OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS ACT
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THIS IS A COPY. THE ORIGINAL 1
RETAINED UNDER SECTION 5 (¢! |
K OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS ACT |

(d) Chapman Pincher's primary source on the Hollis affair was

almost certainly Peter Wright, a former member of the

Security Service, now living in Australia, The evidence

for this is partly circumstantial and parﬁ} intrinsic:

e

Chapman Pincher's book includes a number of references,

and turns of language and phrasing, which strongly suggest

that Peter Wright was Chapman Pincher's main, if not only,
source on this subject. Peter Wright was closely invcr]::a

in the investigation of Sir Roger Hollis and Mr Mitchell.

He was rﬂone of those who said at the time that he thought
Hollis was guilty, He left the Service, however, with a
grievance about the amount of his pension from the Security
Service - his period in the Security Service had been relatively
short, he qualified only for a relatively small amount of
pension, and he thought it should be higher to take account of
previous service in the Army. He still nourishes this

grievance, Itis assumed that he has received payments from

Chapman Pincher which will supplement his pension,

4, 1 do not know whether the evidence against Peter Wright would be strong

enough to sustain a prosecution under the Official Secrets Act: the Attorney

General's minute rather suggests that he thinks it might be, But the question

is probably academic: Peter Wright is in Australia; offences under the Official
-“., :
Secrets Act are not extraditable offences; and, since he must assume that there
has been an investigation and that it has reached the conclusion it has, he is
presumably very unlikely to risk a visit to this country and the possibility of
prosecution, My understanding is thatitis his return to the country thatis

what the Attorney General means by "an unexpected change in circumstances',

G e

i

ROBERT ARMSTRONG

23 July 1981
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‘@ AFTER. THOSE STUNNING DISCLOSURES

Mil5 CHIEF WAS
RUSSIAN‘ SPY _

FOUR mﬂnths ago 1
revealed in the Daily «.
Mail, in its serialisa-




FOUR months ago I
revealed in the Daily
Mail, in its serialisa-
tion of my. book Their
Trade is Treachery
that Sir Roger Hullls
a former Director nf
MI5 had been under
deep suspicion of Ep}f-
ing for the KGB.

Since then a great deal
has happened in the Inner

recesses of Whitehall.
Thanks to friends in high
and secret places, I have been
kept informed of these events
and ecan pow throw lght on
several intriguing mysteries
concerning the Hollls Affair,
Not the least fascinating
aspect of the whole affair was
the statement made by the -
Prime Minister to Parliament
during that first extraordinary
week of publication. .

Mrs Thatcher's wurds WETE- |

carefully chosen, h she
could not avold mnﬂrm&

disclosures that H-uliil

been  suspected by um:l.
colleagues” for seveml YEATS,
had been Investigated by them,
Interrogated and then investi-
gated again after his death by

Lord Trend, a former Cabinet . .

Secretary called back for the

urpose, she also indicated that |

e had been ‘cleared’.
In fact, it was far. from .

being as simple as that. I .

can -now . reveal . exactly
why' the last :rmuiur was
called, and why, Lord

S Trend :ms chosen, Iu
conduct, it.

Susplclﬂns

What happened was this
Certain members of a Joint
M15-Secret Service team (eode-
named the Fluency Committea)
involved in -the earller szecret
Investizations inta Hollls wera

deeply dissatisfled with the way..
the case ‘had beenleft: The'. =
secufity and'intellizence l;hfei'n

had dedlded to shelve the issis’
in the belief that, becduse thers _
wrag ho evidence that® would
have been admissible I.r- a murt-
to ineriminate

was best forgotten.

i Bo, in the early amﬂmqr of
1974, a sp-n esman for’ the,Flu-
BIue ttee ealled Ei.enh
de h-ru}n a former “Secret
Bervice officer, presented him-

gelf af 10 Downing Street and ..

asked . to see the then Prime
Minister, Slr Harold Wilson,
He did not see Bir Harold, but
had =, Jong session with the
Cabinet Secretary, . Sir John
Hunt, npw Jord Hunt. ., |
! Hunt was.already, aware ol
the susplelons regarding Hollis |

for, & few months previously, Ion _

Edward Heafh's' premiership,
there ' hiad' Théen  discussions’
about th&ld?ngem ui’ EGB pana-

tration.
antion, it fmd

] Mﬂﬂﬂm
then been declded to appoint a

Privy Councillor of unguestion-

Daily Mail front page, March 27

g " Dick

a4 I-T-Id.

" ‘the doubt. Bo,

n-ogn Mrs fgatn-hm statement to the Commons

- by Cimpmun Plncher

able m whnm al
mt-euﬂtr letn-

of
might
‘ investigation. Lord "Trend had

Ia-g:eedm't.akeuutnn.'

e Mowbray, who has an Im-

pressive record as. an Investls o -

fmtur sremed 50 couvinesd that

re had been s high-level zpy .5

in MI5 and thet -his treachery

had been- covered up, that the
.~ellegations w-Era reien'ed oo

Lovd, Trend interviewed aif -
the members -of the Fluency -

Trend

Commitiee except one, who was
overseas. They came away be-
Yeving that he was Impressed
by the weight of evidence they
had gathered against Hollis.

He then spent two . days 8
week for several months brows-
Ing among the relevant files at

MIS sheadquarters «in -Curson - . :

Et-l'ﬁel-..i Heconsulted - former
ty .chiefs, including Sir

ite who had promoted
 Hollis:; to be  his.deputy, and
then recommended him as his

o e S R 15 coneult
.- people who
“ port which
i mitted after almést a year.

ve Tead the re-
end finally sub-

_ & They .confirm: that no
new cridence whatever
reached him. So he was
in' no beller” a position
than the meémbers of the
Fluency Commitiee
been when they completed

. their inguiries by interro-
i ‘gmfng Hnﬂw in 1970, s

:ﬂna.ined—

either way. )
Trénd hl.h!refme tu:fnk_a :: u:i.inuq
decidin while
L%:n.l could not- be uﬂain that

i “*Hollls had not been. a #Pm he
should be given the benefit .of |
Janless further

cevidence arrived, the securlty

. possible r 3
be . referred- for qm.c.{

had |

_.mlkes Tio, sense £o

still ramum—unpnvem -

departments could . assume— .'

which they did with relief—that
. Hollis lmd not béen an agent of

- gtated that there was truth
- there had been a cover-up.

In the Whitehall' 'mind &
‘cover-up’ is g siteation In which

officials withhold embarrassing
information from Ministers. 111

‘the minds of most people ‘a”

‘cover-up' Is a sitpation in
which officials and Ministers
withhold ‘embarrassing 'indor-

mation from the publie, In the " °
latter sensze fhere had been 8 -
total cover-up of the Hollis
Affair and most of the ‘other °
- gecurity scandals disclosed 1n ¥

my book,.
In 19'?5 de Mowbray wis séen

- findings. He declined to agcept
"them; arguing that “Trend ‘had
done no more than'follow the
convenient departmental’*line
previously taken by the heads

3 pof, MIS-and the Seeret Service. © .

He was not allowed to see the
Trend Report or any uf"l.ha Té=
* levant documents,
Mrs . Thatcher’s ﬁhutzment..
repared by the Cabinet Office
E: conjunction with the Law
ested that

. Officers and MIS5, su
SE ollis had

the Invnsugnt.idun of H
peen almost routing.

General of MI5 ever.to fall
under any suspicion whntﬂ:r
The statement alsp tained
an essential item wh q.till
the officers
%Imre evidence to Trm:l or

itehall n'ﬂ!h:in.ls H.m el .
-4 the facts.

Mrs Thatcher .sald :
, ease for 1111.*55“5:31[::.3 .Ei.ir Raoger,
. Hollis. was certain
leads that suggem& ‘but did not
. prove, that .there had been a

In de Mowbray's ‘charge tl_ilt- e Ly

by Hunt and briefed on Trend's-

In fack °
Hollis was the first Director-

. » dent Inguiry,”
" *The
; Paﬂlamentary guestions.

* them more than justified.

Russian intt-ll!gmce i-gent llt-
relatively :h level in British .
counter-intelligence. In the last -

;ears of the war. Nooe of these ]
erds identified Bir Roger _,?

pointed specifically or wholly in
his direction. » Each /of them |

: could -also ]:rr: takén s paﬂ.nung'-:

t." 5 & et s

Blunt ll'.*ft in 1045 and:
Philby left the Secret Bervice In *
1851, ‘Nelther had any Surther *
access to secreis. Yel the leads ”

ro o thich made the Fluency (Com=

mittee most suspicious of Hﬂi!h" i
coecurred afler 1951, o, )
For this and nl‘-her rmm.

'mme members of the Flu

Commitiee go Turther than
do In belleving the case fo
unproven.  They be?l.iwu ‘thnt
Hullis Wis Eulmr Al .
However, I am glad t-:- maa:l
iz well that Mlﬁhunnlluﬂ
all its old cunning.
JirEt . before “Mrs "Ihul:!h:r
made her statement, Sir Robert”
Armsirong the Cablnet’ Hﬁﬂ'ﬁ+
hrrz.. 1!'I='.-r'l:|'m.ll.;i|I requested o
book 5O that
Thatcher could make 'a state-
" ment about its mnt.ent.s with
t-he least possible delay. - T
In fact, this naawreh.’l .-

I have now established
that MI5 secured a copy of
the tlext by surr.epmm
means af least two weeks
and probably nore, -in .
gdoance _of ub!:‘.::ﬂﬂ::m
and that a I:rria,f of it-was
avaiable o -the Cabinetl
Office in plenty «of {lime
jor Mrs Thatcher's “con-
sldem!nm L -2 el

= L

Secunty ﬂd

Photocopies of the text WL
shown to formeér chiefs of MIS
and the Secret Service as well.
as to senior Clvil Eerumtaltg:l
their -ndvice was sought. 7§

Among other Ak -wa%
decided that, though:-the book

* bristied with technieal breaches
. of the Official Secrets Act, Do

* attempt wuulﬂ.dhe made: to

- guppress 1&; - o

The timely dlaaupemu thn
day . belore _pu iu -the:
“Daily” Mall, ‘of” Hollis,

widow of Bir Hoger Hni.'lls. ton
‘safe house" where she could not.
be guestioned by reporters, was,

~of course, & clue.that the seou-

rity forces knew something
about what was going on.
A political decision was

" taken to try to clear away all

the embarrassing problenis pre-
sented by the book at the first:
avallable opportunity—the day
the book was published. . . '«
With canny politieal acumen,
- Mrs Thatcher and her advisers.
azsumed that if she announced
the setting up of an indepen-
MPs would re-:
frain from asking ﬂnharra&ﬂl;:

Events have . pm?eﬂ




01-405 7641 Extin 3201

ROYAL COURTS OF JUSTICE.

LONDON,WC2A 2LL

;1-“___ ? JL..]-‘-J -

PRIME MINISTER A ¥p~

CHAPMAN PINCHER'S SOURCES LN

I have now seen the report of the investigation
into Chapman Pincher's sources and I have discussed it
with the Director of Public Prosecutions. It is quite
clear that it is impossible for us to take this any
further unless there 1s an unexpecfed change in circum-

e

stances.

A copy of the report will reach you through the
usual channels.

1 am not circulating copies of this minute.

M-
it

17 July 1981

SECRET
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10 DOWNING STREET

THE PRIME MINISTER 1 April 1981

;?cm. C)‘.:, Houd

Thank you for your letter of 27 March
about the statement which T made in the House
of Commons last week.

I am very glad that what I said then
has been of some comfort to your husband and
his family.

Mrs. Adrian Hollis




SIR ROBERT ARMSTRONG

ihe Pincher Book

I attach a copy of a rather sad and
unnappy letter from the daughter of
Charles Ellis.

I doubt whether there is much comfort
the Prime Minister can offer her, but I
should be grateful for your advice on
what Mrs. Thatcher might say to her,

C A WHITMORE

1 April 1981




10 DOWNING STREET
PRIME MINISTER

The late Sir Roger Hollis's
daughter-in-law has sent you the
attached letter thanking you for
the statement you made last
Thursday.

I have consulted Sir Robert
Armstrong about the kind of
reply you should send, and we
are agreed that it would be
prudent to send no more than a
very brief and simple answer
which offers no comment on
substance. I attach such a

letter for your signature.

KoMl

31 March 1981




10 DOWNING STREET

From the Principal Private Secretary

Sir Robert Arma;runj | ! 10,

4

The Pincher Book

We had a word last week about the Prime Minister's
suggestion that she might follow up her statement in the
House on Thursday with a letter to Lady Hollis. Your
advice - which I conveyed subsequently to the Prime Minister -
was that admirable gesture though this might be, it might give
rise to difficulties, given Sir Roger Hollis' marital history:
and the Prime Minister decided not to write.

I now attach a letter from Sir Roger Hollis' daughter-
in-law thanking the Prime Minister for her statement. I am
disposed to advise the Prime Minister to reply very simply
and briefly on the following lines:-

"Thank you for your letter of 27 March about the statement
which I made in the House last week.

I am very glad that what I said then has been of Ssome
comfort to peu—and your husband gud 3 Iz.g.‘(j :

Do you agree?

KoM - bk

30 March, 1981. [ 4_3\,{,&/ bt %g,al”
- A. cﬁu.cﬁ. W

Eﬁ'gl-aﬁ
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The Rt. Hon. The Lord Home of The Hirsel, K.T.

March 27th,1981,

Thank you for your letter
on the Pincher business,

I thought that your statement
was excellent and achieved exactly
the right balance.

I have declined all but the
barest comment, but if Diplock
and his colleagues want to see me
I will get in touch with Robert

Armstrong.

The Rt, Hon,
Mrs Margaret Thatcher., M.P.
10 Downing Street.




Duncan Campbell and Walter Barr reveal how

ocence

Hollis's successor at MIbS still believesin his

»

The rot at the top of MiI5

THE MAN who succeeded Sir Roger
Hollis as head of MI5, and who is
alleged to have ordered a subsguent
accusatory interrogation of Hollis, has
denied the existence of any government
reports “implicating Sir Roger Hollis".
Sir Martin Furnival Jones, who was the
Deputy Director General of M13 under
Hollis, and later the Director General
from 1965 until 1970, 1old the New
Sraresman in an exclusive interview
that investigations conducted by for-
mer Cabinet Secretary 5ir Burke Trend
had not led Trend to conclude that
Hollis was a traitor.

o Our taped interview with Sir Martin
Furnival Jones, who has now refused
to comment further, took place last

! summer, when we investigated the con-

| tents of the ‘Trend Report’ concerning

{| the high level penétration of MI5 by the
|1 KGB. Rumours and reports about the

Soviet agents at the top of MIS have
been circulating for more than a
decade. Afier the exposure of Anthony
Blunt, Hollis's name was mentioned
with increasing frequency, and last
year we received some very precise
information about Sir Roger’s alleged
treachery. But — particularly in view
of Furnival Jones's comments — we
did not consider it a firm case against a
dead man, and one who had not con-
fessed.

We asked Furnival Jones if he
accepied that Sir Burke (now Lord)
Trend's ‘considered view was that
Hollis was a Soviet penetration agent®.
Furnival Jones replied that *I'm sure it
wasn't his view ... | know Burke
Trend and 1 know that isn’t his view
« « - He 1old me'.

-i We asked him if he knew if Trend's
iinm:stigatiunj implicated anvone else:
|"'I'm afraid 1 can’t help you', he said.
{Was he aware of the existence of a
yreport on the subject by Trend: *None

implicating 5ir Roger Hollis, no'.

THE REVELATIONS made by Chap-
man Pincher and the Daily Mail do not
amount 1o proof against Hollis. That
may be provided, one way or the other,
by the Prime Minister. However
Pincher's allegations have brought out
into the open the enormous split within
both British and US intelligence
agencies over the persistent suspicions
of KGB moles. From our own investi-
gations we can say that a substantial
part of Chapman Pincher's material,
which is identical with our own unpub-
lished report, comes (in our case, indi-
rectly) from James Jesus Angleton, the
former CIA counterintelligence chief.
Angleton and his favourite defector,
Anatoli Golitsin, spent over a decade
after Golitsin's 1963 defection purport-
ing to identify KGB moles in Western
intelligence and security services from
the CIA downwards. The Angleton/
Golitsin mole-spotting hunts created
such friction, distrust, and mutual sus-
picion that many ClA officers eventu-
ally came to the view that the damage
and ruin created by Angleton impli-
caled him as the main choice for a
KGB *‘mole'.

Angleton's investigations were never
conclusive. Most recently, he supplied

Pial 17 1 AleEsman 27 March 1981

spy author Andrew Boyle with the
name of his alleged *‘fifth man’, a Brit-
ish physicist living in the US called Wil-
fred Mann. Mann has successiully
repudiated the allegation.

Some critical parts of the explana-
tion of Hollis's alleged treachery — in
particular the account of how he was
recruited by the KGB — are less than
paper thin, and rely entirely on Angle-
ton. Hollis was supposed to have been
sexually (presumably heterosexually)
compromised in the early 1930s while
working for British American Tobacco
in Shanghai by a particularly rough
KGB recruiter.,

Angleton also alleges that Hollis
made determined attempis 1o minimise
the significance of Soviet defectors, in
particular the Petrovs who defected to
Australia. Then, in 1963, came Angle-
ton's prize, the defecting KGB major
Anatoli Golitsin. Angleton claims that
the final evidence 10 make Blunt con-
fess came from Golitsin, and that he
also pointed to a mole at the heart of
M.

THE DESCRIPTION of the search for
the MI5 mole published this week

reveals how one very semior MI3 offi-
cial, whom Pincher obliquely calls
‘Peters', was initially intensely
watched because he was one of a very
few people handling certain informa-
tion believed to have leaked. Then he
was cleared and suspicion inevitably
fell on his boss, Hollis. This senior offi-
cial was in fact the Deputy Director
General, Graham Mitchell, who is still
alive, living in Surrey. Although he was
cleared (and inevitable suspicion gener-
ated that he was set up by Hollis as a
scapegoat) he left M15 early, retiring in
1963 at age 58.

Angleton also claims that Hollis
ordered the MIS team interrogating
Blunt off the job shortly after they
began getting close Lo receiving infor-
mation on other MIS penetrations.

Angleton was forced to resign from
the CIA in 1974, when congressional
enquiries revealed the illegal surveil-

P LR e )

lance activities being carried out in the”
US by his Counterintelligence Divi-

00, Since then, he has been an erratic

figure in the background of the Wash.

ington spy scene, endlessly Iunliﬂgreat
book-length accusations of moles and

plants 1o visiting journalisis. |

By the end of this week (and afier we| H [
go 1o press) Mrs Thatcher will have) Bhﬂ"dﬂﬂﬂd Linw

produced the authorised, Whitehall
viersion of the Hollis Affair. However
far she is forced 1o go this time there
will be no getting back from what one s Al

senior intelligence official describes as L+ F
a ‘fantastically damaging cover-up'. ¥
There remains in MIS a group of offi-§ g
cials, led by one whom we have heard
of only enigmatically as "Steven’, who
are convinced that Hollis and everyone PSS
who arrived during his Lime must now ;

be the targel of the greatest purge any B

intelligence organisation has seen in /
non-revolutionary times. Many in MI5 g4

understandably hold opinions at the
opposite extreme. Ouiside MIS, one
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this circus anyway.

Terry O'Halloran on
allegations of racism

Protests at
police raid
on school

STUDENTS at Archway School,
Morth London, claim that they were
physically attacked and racially abused . .
by police who raided their school on Iﬁ-mh"-'-rl'l:l:l'nE and which _1135
February. profits from the main c
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trated on the official version of the(n collapsed. Why?
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al transport compan
Peugeot brothers and P
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moped might be stolen the police ]
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. SECURITY

[ With permission, Mr. Speaker, I will make a statement -about the
security implications of the book published today which
purports to give a detailed account of the investigations

into the penetration of the Security Service and other

Parts of the public service which were undertaken

fbllowing the defection of Burgess and Maclean in 1951.

The events intn which those investigations were inguiring began well
over 40 years ago. Many of those named or implicated in this
book as having been the subject of investigation have died.
Others have long since retired. None of them is still in the

public service.

The extent of penetration was thoroughly investigated after the
defection of Burgess and Maclean, as indeed the author
of this book makes clear. The book contains no
information of security significance whiech is new to the
% security authorities, And some of the material is inaccurate
or = distorted, All the cases and individuals referred to

* have been the subject of long and thorough investigation.

The investigations into the possibilities of past penetration have
inevitably extended widely. They have covered not only
those suspected of being guilty; but also all those who could
conceivably fit the often inconelusive leads available.
The fact that somebody has been the subject of investigation
does not necessarily or even generally mean that he has been

positively suspected: many people have had to be investigated

simply in order to eliminate them from the enquiry.
/The results




1

— The results of the investigations into Philby and Blunt .are now
well known. There were good reasons for suspecting a few
others, but as it was not possible tﬂlﬂﬁuure.evidence on
which charges could be founded, they were required to
resign or were moved to work where they had no access to

classified information. Many others were eliminated from

suspicion.

Apart from the main allegation, which I will come to, I do not propose
to comment on the other allegations and insinuations in this
book. Nor can I say which allegations are unsubstantiated
Oor untrue - as some certainly are - since by doing so I should

implicitly be indicating those which were suspected of having

a degree of substance.

I must, however, comment upon the grave allegation which constitutes
the main theme of the book, that the late Sir Roger Hollis,
Director General of the Security Service from 1956 to 1965,

was an agent of the Russian Intelligence Service.

/The case for investigating




!LE case for investigating Sir Roger Hollis was based on certain

leads which suggested, but did not prove that there had
been a Russian Intelligence Service agent at a relatively
senior level in British counter-intelligence in the last
vears of the war, None of these leads identified

Sir Roger Hollis, or pointed specifically or solely in
his direction; each of them could also be taken as
pointing to Philby or Blunt. But he was among those

that fitted some of them, and he was therefore investigated

-

The investigation took place after Sir Roger Hollis's retirement

This view

-

from the Security Service. It did not conclusively
prove his innocence: indeed it is very often impossible
Lo prove innocence; that is why in our law the burden
. ANt
0f proof is placed upon those who seek to proue guilt
and not on those who defend innocence. But no evidence
was found that incriminated him, and the conclusion reached

at the end of the investigation was that he had not

been an agent of the Russian Intelligence Service.

was challenged, however, by a veqrfewhﬂf those concerned,
and in July 1974, Lord Trend, the former Secretary of

the Cabinet, was asked to review in detail the investiga-
tions that had taken place into the case of Sir Roger
Hollis, and to say whether they had been done in a proper
and thorough manner, and whether in his view the conclusions
reached were justified. He examined the files and

records and he discussed the case with many of those

/ concerned,




concerned, including two people who considered that

the investigation should be reopened.

Mr, Pincher's account of Lord Trend's conclusions is wrong. The
book asserts that Lord Trend "concluded that there was
a strong prima facie case that MI5 had been deeply
penetrated over many years by someone who was not Blunt",
and that he '"named Hollis as the likeliest suspect",.
Lord Trend said neither of those things, and nothing
resembling them. He reviewed the investigations of
the case, and found that they had been carried out
exhaustively and objectively. He was satisfied that
nu£Hing had been covered up. He agreed that none of
the relevant leads identified Sir Roger Hollis as an
agent of the Russian Intelligence Service, and that
each of them could be explained by reference to Philby
or Blunt. Lord Trend did not refer, as the book says
he did, to "the possibility that Hollis might have
recruited unidentified Soviet agents into MIS". Again,

he said no such thing.

Lord Trend, with whom I have discussed the matter, agreed with
those who, although it was impossible to prove the
negative, concluded that Sir Roger Hollis had not been

an agent of the Russian Intelligence Service.

I turn next to the arrangements for guarding against penetration

now and in the future.

/ All Departments




:!! Departments and agencies of Government, especially those
concerned with foreign and defence policy and with
natiﬁnal security, are targets for penetration by hostile
intelligence services. The Security Service, with its
responsibilities for countering espionage and subversion,
is a particularly attractive target. Recent security
Successes (like the expulsion of members of the Russian
Intelligence Service from this country in 1971) would
hardly have been achieved, if the Security Service was
penetrated. The Security Service exercises constant
vigilance not only against the risk of current penetration
but alsoc against the possibility of hitherto undetected
past penetration which might have continuing implications.
Eut,:hawever great our confidence in the integrity and
dediﬂatiﬂnlnf those now serving in the Security Service,
we need to make sure that the arrangements for guarding
against penetration are as good as they possibly can be,

both in this area and throughout the public service.

Existing security procedures were introduced dur}ng the years
following the Second World War. Burgess, Maclean,
Philby and Blunt were all recruited by the Russian
Intelligence Service before the Second World War, and
came into the public service either before or during
the war, well before existing security procedures were
introduced. It was in 1948 that the then Prime Minister
announced the Government's intention to bar Communists

" and Fascists and their associates from employment in

/ the public




the public service in connection with work the nature

4R - -Qf which was vital to the security of the State. _This led
to the introduction of what came to be known as the "purge
procedure'". 1In 1952 the positive vetting procedure was
instituted, with the object of establishing the integrity
of civil servants employed on exceptionally secret work.
In 1956 it was publicly declared that character defects,
as distinct from Communist or Fascist sympathies or
associations, might affect a civil servant's posting or
promotion. In 1961 security procedures and practices in
the public service were reviewed by an independent Committee
under the Chairmanship of the late Lord Radecliffe. The
Committee's report, published in 1962, contained an account
of thﬂEE:pruﬂ?dures, and made various recommendations for
modifying theﬁ, which the Govermment accepted. These

procedures, as modified in 1962, are still in operation

today.

These arrangements have over the years substantially reduced the
vulnerability of the public service to the threat of
. penetration, and have served the interests of national
security well. But it is twenty years since they were last
subject to independent review. In that time the teuhniques
of penetration and the nature of the risks may have changed.
We need to make sure that our protective Security procedures

have developed to take account of those changes.

I have therefore decided, after consultation with the right hon.
Gentleman the Leader of the Opposition, to ask the

Security Commission:

[/ "To review the




— "To review the security procedures and .
practices currently followed in the publiec
service .and to consider what, if any, changes

are required".

These terms of reference will enable the Security Commission to
review, and to make recommendations as appropriate, on
the arrangements and procedures used in all parts of the
public service for the purposes of safeguarding information
and activities involving national security against
penetration by hostile intelligence services, and of
excluding from appointments which give access to highly
classified information both those with allegiances which
they put abﬁve loyalty to their country, and those who
may for whatever reason be vulnerable to attempts to
undermine their loyalty and extort information by

pressure or blackmail.

There are difficult balances to be struck here between the
- need to protect national security, the nature and cost of
the measures required to do so effectively, the need for
efficiency and economy in the publiec service, and the
individual rights of members of the publiec service to
personal freedom and privacy. The Security Commission will

be able to consider how these balances ought to be

fstruck in the




B === sStruck in the circumstances of the present time, as they
conduct their review and prepare their recommendations,
1t will be my intention to make their findings known
Lo the House in due course, to the extent that it is

consistent with national security to do so.

Mr. Speaker, in conclusion I should like to emphasise once
again that this statement arises out of a book which
deals with investigations of matters and events which
occurred many years ago. My concern is with the
present and with the future. That is why I am asking

the Security Commission to undertake the review which I

have described.
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Mr. Speaker, I hope that the House will appreciate

and respect the fact that I have dealt with these

‘ matters in my statement, which was prepared with ﬂ
| 6 great care, more fully than might have been thought } {
| appropriate in the past. I trust it will be

understood when I say that I can have little or

nothing that I can usefully add.
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HOLLIS AND MINISTERS

@ Have Ministers been kept informed on the investigation into

the case against Sir Roger Hollis?

Since 1975, when Lord Trend reported, successive Prime Ministers
and Home Secretaries have been told of the fact that Sir Roger
Hollis was investigated, of the conclusions of the investigation
and of Lord Trend's report of his review of the investigation.
Ministers were not informed until then.l I cannot of course answer
for what happened or did not happen under previocus administrations,
but I imagine that the Security Service took the view that they
were not called upon to report to Ministers unless the
investigations led - as it never did - to the conclusion that

Sir Roger Hollis had probably been a spy."ﬂs a general rule it
must be right that the Security Service should fepurt to Ministers
only when there is definite reason to believe that there has been
a breach of security. Their directive does not require them -
indeed, it authorises them not - to report to Ministers every
investigation they undertake, and it would be very undesirable that
they should. With the benefit of hindsight perhaps it would have
been better if they had reported this particular case to Ministers
at an earlier stage. Nowadays they certainly would do so in

accordance with the arrangements I described to the House in my

speech in the Blunt debate on 21st November 1979.




CONTINUING INVESTIGATION

Ql2, Are you satisfied that all the leads-studied in the

investigation of the penetration of the Security Service have.

been fully accounted for?

A.  All the leads which could have implied penetration of the
Security Service can be attributed to kmown spies such as Philby,

Blunt or Blake, or are now so old or vague that they cannot be

investigated further,




FAILURES OF SECURITY SERVICE

Q2. If Hollis was not a spy, then who was at the bottom of the
failures experienced by the Security Service during Hollis'
R ————

time as Director-General?

A. I cannot accept that a period which included the arrest and

conviction of Lonsdale, the Erogers, Houghton and Gee, Vassall and

— S —

Blake was a period of unmitigated failure. No Intelligence Service

wishes to get the reputation of abandoning its agents £u their fate,
and it is hard to believe that, if the Russians had had forewarning
that the Security Service was on to these people, they would not

have found means of getting them out of the way.




PETERS

Q: What about PETERS?

A: I understand that Mr., Graham Mitchell, a former
Deputy Director General of the Security Service, has
told the press that he is the man to whom the code name
PETERS applies. I can confirm that this is so, and,
since he is the one and only other case reviewed by
Lord Trend, that he was investigated and that the

clear conclusion, with which Lord Trend agreed, was

that he had not been an agent of the Russian

Intelligence Service.




IMMUNITY

RQl5. Have any of those mentioned in the book been offered immunity

from prosecution?

A, The question of immunity from prosecution is one for my

Rt Hon and Learned Friend, the Attorney General.
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Q.16,

A
were to

for the

Q.17.

H-

SECURITY SERVICE AND MPs

Are any hon., Members of the House paid as agents

of the Security Service?

I understand not, but if the national interest
require it, they could be. It would be a matter

individual Member,.

Do the Security. Service collect information from

or about MPs?

-]

Members of Parliament may of course volunteer

information which they consider ought to be in the

possession of the security authorities. The Security

Service would not themselves initiate an approach to an

L

MP who mighﬁ have information of a security interest without

informing the Home Secretary. Information about MPs

sometimes becomes available to the Security Service

incidentally in the course of enquiries made under their

directive,




DRIBERG

Q4. (ref pp 97.7, 119-206, 206-8)
Were Captain Kerby and Tom Driberg employed as agents by
MI5 whilst they were MPs?

A. I am not prepared to comment on individual cases mentioned in

the book.




Q8.

-A-i-

FIFTH MAN

(ref Chapter 17)

No.

Will the Prime Minister identify the Defence Scientist

referred to in the book as the real fifth man?

As I have already made clear in my statement to the

House, however, a number of public servants who came under suspicion

but against whom charges could not be brought were asked to resign

or moved to non-secret work.




SIR GEOFFREY HARRISON

Q13, {ref page 18?}

Have the security aspects of the compromise of Sir Geoffrey
Harrison, to which the book clearly refers, been looked into?

-A. Yes, and there is no evidence of any damage to security.

T T T e e— B




TELEPHONE TAPPING

Q15. (ref p 225)

Will you confirm the arrangements for telephone tapping

described in Mr Pincher's book.

A, I have nothing to add to the statement which my Rt Hon Friend

the Seﬁretary of State for the Home Department made in this House on

1 April 1980, the White Paper issued the same day (Cmnd 7873),

and the recent report by Lord Diplock. (Cmnd-8191).




. SECURITY COMMISSION

D. Inquiry by the Security Commission and Accountability

Q1. Why have you asked the Security Commission to conduct this inquiry?

A. The Security Commission was established in 1964. Its terms of reference
e ——
as announced in this House on 23 January 1964 by the then Prime Minister are

as follows =

"If so requested by the Prime Minister, to investigate and report upon
the circumstances in which a breach of security is known to have occurred
in the public service, and upon any related failure of departmental
security arrangements or neglect of duty; and, in the light of any such
in?eatigatjqn, to advise whether any change in ;ecurity arrangements is

necessary or desirable",

Although, as I have said, there is no evidence of current breaches of security,

= - =, e e o = = - . - S e e ey

it is nearly twenty years since the procedure for safeguarding against penetra-
tion and protecting sensitive information and areas of work were last subject
to inﬁependant review (by Lord Radecliffe, in his Report on Security Procedures
in the Public Service (Cmnd 1681) in 1962). I think that a new review would
now be timely. The Security Commission is the appropriate body to consider the
procedures In the public service for safeguarding against threats to national

security and to make recommendations about the handling of security matters in

the public service.




RE-INVESTIGATION OF PAST

Q3. But would not an independent and specially constituted Committee of
Inquiry allow you to review the Hollis case again as well as the other allega-

tions in the book?

A As I said in my statement, I am satisfied that the Hollis case has been
exhaustivel} and objectively investigated and reviewed. The same is true of
the other alleged cases of penetration. A new invesﬁigaticn by a special
Committee of Inquiry would be unlikely to turn up new evidence or produce
different conclusions from those which we already have. I believ@ a further

inquiry into the past would serve no useful purpose, and would pre-empt

resources from more productive tasks.




INDEPENDENT ENQUIRY

Q6. Would not a Standing Committee of Privy Counsellors answerable to
Parliament for the work of the Security and Intelligence Services ensure a

better protection against the future risk of penetration?

A. No, I do not think so. I believe that the public interest is best safe-

E

guarded by maintaining the present arrangements whereby the Ministers directly

concerned bear full responsibility for these matters. The Security Commission
o i ———— T

will help us to make sure that the procedures for protecting security are as

they should be. °




MORALE OF SECURITY SERVICE

Q7. Are you not concerned at the damage which the inquiry and the revelations

in the book will do to the efficiency of the Security and Intelligence Services?

A. I am of course concerned at the damage which this book may do to the morale

of the organisations in question. The preservation of national security has

been my paramount consideration in deciding to ask the Security Commission to

review the procedures.




. ACCOUNTABILITY

The Rt Hon Gentleman the Member for Cardiff South East
did not of course propose an inquiry into the past, which he
thought was unlikely to be useful or successful. He came down

against any role for Parliament in decisions on security matters.

He floated the idea of an inquiry on relations between Ministers
and the heads of the agencies, and on whether Parliament could
be more involved in the rules and:the way in which they were

————

applied or observed.

Mr Speaker, we have an npgn society, which depends for its
protection on the work of the é:::fk service, and on it being
able to do that work in secret. To open it up to public or even
Parliamentary scrutiny would be to risk weakening or destroying

its effectiveness. .

That is why I believe that responsibility cannot be put into
commission'to Privy Counsellors outside the Government of the
day, to a Parliamentary Committee, or to the Judiciary. It has to

be carried, as the House has always accepted it should be, by

Ministers.

There are established procedures for accountability to Ministers
in these matters. These were strengthened by the arrangements
which I described in the Blunt Debate on 21 November 1979. These

arrangements for accountability to Ministers are working

satisfactorily, and I see no need or reason to ask the Security

Commission to review them.




FILES ON MFs

Q@ Is it true that the Security Service have dossiers on 60

Labour Members of Parliament?

A This is an old story.
It would not be in the public interest for me to disclose

any details of Security Service records.

j:I can, however, say that the Security Service would not approach
or investigate a Member of Farliament without informing nmy

right hon. Friend the Home Secretary, though information about

MFs sometimes becomes available to the Security Service

incidentally in the course of inquiries made under their directive /.




MAXwew EYFE DieecnveE

On 24 September, 1952, Sir David Maxwell Fyfe, then Home
Secretary,
Security Service, which is the governing instrument today:

DENNING REPORT

THE DIRKCTIVE TO THE DIRECTOR GENERAL OF
7 THE SECURITY SERVICE

(Denning, para. 238) }‘} (7

issued this Directive to the Director General of the

"In your appointment as Director General

of the Security Service you will be responsible
to tne Home Secretary personally. The Security
Service is not, however, a part of the Home

Office. On appropriate occasion you will have

right of direct access to the Prime Minister.

The Security Serwvice is part of the Defence Forces of
the country. Its task is the Defence of the Realm

as a whole, from external and internal dangers arising
from attempts at espionage and sabotage, or from
actions of persons and organisations whether directed
from within or without the countéy, which may be
Jjudged to be subversive to the State.

You will take special care to see that the work of
the Security Service is strietly limited to what is
necessary for the purposes of this task.

It is essential that the Security Service should be
kept absolutely free from any political bias or
influence and nothing should be done that might lend WL
colour to any suggestion that it is concerned with

the interests of any particular section of the

community, or with any other matter than the Defence

of the Realm as a whole,

No enquiry is to be carried out on behalf of any
Government Department unless you are satisfied that an
important publie interest bearing on the Defence of the
Realm, as defined in paragraph 2, is at stake.

/You and your




You and your staff will maintain the well-established

convention whereby Ministers do not concern themselves
with the detailed information which may be obtained

by the Security Service in particular cases, but are
furnished with such information only as may be necessary
for the .determination of any issue on which guidance is

sought.”
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NEW ARRANGEMENT FOR MINISTERIAL ACCOUNTABILITY

In the light of these events, I see no need to
change the principles governing the relationships between
the Security Service and Ministers, as set out in the
Denning Report. I think it right, however, that there
should be a clear understanding among all those concerned
about how we expect those principles to be applied. I
have accordingly agreed the following points with my
right hon. Friend the Home Secretary and my right hon.
and learned Friend the Attorney-General.

First, the Director-General should report to the
Home Secretary if he receives information about a present
or former Minister or senior public servant indicating that
he may be, or may have been, a security risk, unless circum-
stances are so exceptional that he judges it necessary to
report direct to the Prime Minister.

Secondly, when the Director-General has reported to
the Home Secretary, it is the Home Secretary's responsibility
to inform the Prime Minister or make sure that the Prime
Minister is informed.

Thirdly, if the Attorney-General is asked to authorise
a grant of immunity from prosecution in a case involving
national security, he should satisfy himself that the
Home Secretary is aware that the request has been made,
In cases of especial doubt or difficulty, the Attorney-
General or the Home Secretary, or both, may wish to see
that the Prime Minister is also aware that the request
has been made. The Attorney-General and the Home Secretary
should always be informed of the outcome of the offer of

immunity. It is the responsibility of the Home Secretary

to ensure that the Prime Minister is informed.




10 DOWNING STREET

From the Principal Private Secretary

SIR ROBERT MSTRONG

MR. CHAPMAN PINCHER'S BOOK

The Prime Minister met the Home Secretary, the Foreign and
Commonwealth Secretary, the Chancellor of the Duchy of Lancaster
and the Attorney General vesterday evening to discuss the
statement she is due to make today on the allegations contained
in Mr. Chapman Pincher's book. You were also present.

I now attach a copy of the latest version of the statement
which has been revised to take account of last night's discussion,

I am sending copies of this minute and of the draft statement
to Mr. Halliday (Home Office), Mr. Walden (FCO), Mr. Heyhoe
(Chancellor of the Duchy of Lancaster's Office) and Mr. Nursdw
(Law Officers! Department),

26 Maréh 1981
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DRAFT STATEMENT

SECURITY

With permission, Mr. Speaker, I will make a statement
about the security implications of the book recently
published which purports to give a detailed account of
the investigations into the penetration of the Security
Service and other parts of the public service which were

undertaken following the defection of Burgess and Maclean

in 1551.

2. As I said to the House on 21 November 1279, the events
into which those investigations were ingquiring began well
over 40 years ago. Many of those named or implicated

in this book as having been the subject of investigation
have died. Others have long since retired. None of

them is still in the public service,

3. The extent of penetration was thoroughly investigated
after the defection of Burgess and Maclean, as indeed the
author of this book makes c¢lear. The book contains no
information of security significance which is new to the
security authorities. All the cases and indiwviduals
referred to in it have been the subject of exhaustive

| investigation. The investigations into the possibilities
0of past penetration have inevitably been, as such
investigations have to be, very wide. They have covered

not only those suspected of being guilty; they have

/| extended




extended to all those who could conceivably fit the

often inconclusive leads available., The fact that somebody
has been the subject of investigation does not necessarily
or even generally mean that he has been positively

suspected: many people have had to be investigated

* 8simply in order to elimihate them from the inquiry.

4. The results of the investigations into Philby and
Blunt are now well known. There were good reasons for
suspecting a few others, but as it was not possible to
secure evidence on which charges could be founded, they
were requlred to resign or were moved to work where they
had no access to classified information. Many others

were eliminated from suspicion.

2. Apart from the main allegation, which I will come to,

I do not propose to comment on the other allegations and
insinuations in this book,. Nor can I say which allegations
are untrue or unsubstantiated - as some certainly are -
since by doing so I should implicitly be indicating

those which were suspected of having a degree of substance,

6. I must, however, comment upon the grave allegation
which constitutes the main theme of the book, that the
late Sir Rﬂger_Hﬂllis, Director General of the Security
Service from 1956 to 1965, was an agent of the Russian

Intelligence Service.

i
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- based on certain leads which suggested, but did not

Te The case for investigating Sir Roger Hollis was

prove, that there had been a Russian Intelligence Service
agent at a relatively senior level in British counter-
intelligence in the last years of the war. None of
these leads identified Sir Roger Hollis, or pointed
specifically or solely in his direction; each of them
could also be taken as pointing to Philby or Blunt.

But he was among those that fitted some of them, and

he .was therefore investigated.

8. The investigation took place after Sir Roger Hollis's
retirement from the Security Service. It did not
conclusively prove his innocence; indeed it is very often
impossible to prove innocence: that is why in our law

the burden of proof is placed upon those who seek to prove
guilt and not on tﬁﬂse who defend innocence. But no
evidence was found that incriminated him, and the conclusion
reached at the end of the investigation was that he had not

been an agent of the Russian Intelligence Service.

9, This view was challenged by a very few of those
concerned, however, and in July 1974, Lord Trend, the
former Secretary of the Cabinet, was asked to review in
detail the investigations that had taken place into the
case_uf Sir Roger Hollis, and to say whether they had been

done in a proper and thorough manner, and whether in his

/ view the
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view the conclusions reached were justified. He examined
the files and records and he discussed the case with many
of those concerned, including two people who considered-
that the investigation should be reopened, Mr. Pincher's
account of Lord Trend's conclusions is wrong. The book
.asserts that Lord Trend "concluded that there was a strong
prima facie case that MI5 had been- deeply penetrated

over many years by someone who was not Blunt", and that

he “named Hollis as the likeliest suspect",. Lord Trend
said neither of those things, and nothing resembling them.
On the contrary, he reviewed the investigations of the
case, and found that they had been carried out exhaustively
and objectively. He was satisfied that nothing had been
covered up. He agreeq that none of the relevant leads
identified Sir Roger Hollis as an agent of the Russian
Intelligence Service, and that each of them could be
explained by reference to Philby or Blunt. Lord Trend
did not refer, as the book says he did, to '"the possibility
that Hollis might have recruited unidentified Soviet
agents into MIS". Again, he said nc such thing. Lord
Trend, with whom I have discussed the matter, agreed

with those who, although it was impossible to prove the
_negative, concluded that Sir Roger Hollis had not been an

agent of the Russian Intelligence Service,

10. .I turn next to the arrangements for guarding against

penetration now and in the future.

JEdiLs
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11. All Departments and agencies of Government, especially
those concerned with foreign and defence poliey and with
national security, are targets for penetratiﬂn'by hostile
intelligence services. The Security Service, with its
responsibilities for countering espionage and subversion,

is a particularly attractive target. Recent security
successes (like the expulsion of members of the Russian
Intelligence Service from this country in 1971) would
hardly have been achieved, if the Security Service was
penetrated. But, however great our confidence in the
integrity and dedication of those now serving in the
Security Service, we need to make sure that the arrangements
for guarding against penetration are as good as they
possibly can be, both in this area and throughout the public

service,

12, Existing security procedures were introduced during
the years following the Second World War. Burgess, Maclean,
Philby and Blunt were all recruited by the Russian
Intelligence Service before the Second World War, and

came into the public service either before or during the
war, well before existing security procedures were
introduced. It was in 1948 that the then Prime Minister
announced the Government's intention to bar Communists

and Fascists and their associates from employment in the
public service in connection with work the nature of which

was vital to the security of the State. This led to the

/ introeduction




introduction of what came to be known as the "purge

procedure'",., In 1952 the positive vetting procedure was

instituted, with the object of establishing the integrity
of civil servants employed on exceptionally secret work.

In 1956 it was publicly declared that character defects,

-as distinect from Eﬂmmunisf or Fascist sympathies. or
associations, might affect a civil- servant's posting or
promotion. In 1962 security procedures and practices

in the public service were reviewed by an independent
Committee under the chairmanship of the late Lord Radeliffe,
The Committee's report, published as Cmnd 1681, contained
an account of the procedures, and made various recommendations
for modifying them, which the Government accepted. These
procedures, as modified in 1962, are still in operation

today.

13. These arrangements have over the years substantially
reduced the vulnerability of the public service to the
threat of penetration, and have served the interests of
national security well. But it is twenty vears since
they were last subject to independent review. In that
time the techniques of penetration and the nature of the
risks may have changed. We need to make sure that our
protective security procedures have developed to take

account of those changes.

14, I have therefore decided /

after consultation with

the right hon. Gentleman the Leader of the Uppositinni}

/! to ask
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to ask the Security Commission:

"To review the security procedures and practices
currently followed in the public service and to

consider what, if any, changes are required".

15. These terms of reference will enable the Security
Commission to review, and to make recommendations as
anoropriate on, the arrangements and procedures used 1n
all parts of the public service for the purposes of
safeguarding information and activities involving national
security against penetration by hostile intelligence
services, and of excluding from appointments which give
access to highly classified information both those with
allegiances which they put above loyalty to their country,
and those who may for whatever reason be vulnerable to
attempts to undermine their loyalty and extort information

by pressure or blackmail.

16, There are difficult balances to be struck here between
the need to protect national security, the nature and cost

of the measures required to do so effectively, the need

for efficiency and economy in the public service, and the

individual rights of members of the public service to
personal freedom and privacy. The Security Commission

will be able to consider how these balances ought to be

/ struck
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struck in the circumstances of the present time, as they
conduct their review and prepare their recommendations.

It will be my intention to make their findings known to

the House in due course, to the extent that it is consisient

with national security to do so.

17, Mr. Speaker, in conclusion I should like to emphasise
once again that this statement arises out of a book which
deals with investigations of matters and events which
occurred many years ago. My concern is with the present
and with the future. That is why I am asking the Security

Commission to undertake the review which I have described.
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Ref, AQ4547
MR, WHITMORE
Security

At the risk of being a bore, but in the light of this morning's press, I
still think that there is a case for adding one sentence to paragraph 11. It would
be a new fourth sentence, just before the last sentence; and it would read:
'""The Security Service exercises constant vigilance not only against the
risk of current penetration but also against the possibility of hitherto
undetected past penetration which might have continuing implications',
£, This additional sentence would really go to the same point as the one which
was bothering the Chancellor of the Duchy of Lancaster yesterday: the need to

bridge the gap between the old history and the new review.

ROBERT ARMSTRONG

26th March, 1981




10 DOWNING STREET

From the Principal Private Secretary

26 March 1981

Mr Chapman Pincher's Book

The Prime Minister met Mr.

Michael Foot and Mr,

Roy Hattersley

in her room in the House this morning to discuss the statement

about Mr. Chapman Pincher's book
in the day. She was accompanied
Sir Robert Armstrong.

The Prime Minister said that what she had to say to Mr.
Hattersley was strictly on Privy Counselilor terms.

Pincher's book dealt with events which had occurred twentv to
It contained nothing of a security nature which

and Mr.
Mr.
fifty vears ago.

was new to the security authorities.

which she was due to make later
by the Home Secretary and

Foot

All the allegations it made

about the penetration of the Security Service by the Russian

intelligence service had already

Though much of the content of the book was accurate,
a good deal that was inaccurate and distorted.
Pincher said about the results of the investigation into the

Mr.
allegation that Sir Roger Hollis
intelligence service was wrong

ﬁ'l'\'-.ri- l-'-l.-‘
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She had, for example, dealt with
Written Answer and then speaking
of the difficulties about making
would be little sie wouLd
answelr supplementary Questions.
right way to handle the matter.
answer each and every allegation
people,
guilty.
of the Security Service,
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allegation against Sir Roger Hollis,

the book.
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been investigated thoroughly.
therz was
In particular what

-
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had been an agent of the Russian
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the Blunt case by Ilrbb a;vtng a
in the subsequent debate. One

a statement would be that there
to add to it when she came to
]:\-l'_.i; 50 ".:.:.LJ.L" 1..- J.L.--..J.,_-,a. L Ll-l'-l--"_'l Wl
She did not propose teo try to
in the book. If she cleared some

'
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those whom she did not mention would be thought to be
But because of the position he had held as Director General
she felt that she had to deal with the

which was the main theme of

/She would
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She would also emphasise in her statement that she saw
no point in conducting yet another investigation into the
charges which had been made against Sir Roger Hollis and other
people. They had already been examined very thoroughly in the
past and Lord Trend had conducted his own exhaunstive review of
them. Rather, she would make clear that her primary concern was
now with the ways and means of preventing penetration of the
Security Service today and in the future and she would accordingly
announce that as security procedures hﬁﬂ not been reviewed for
iwenty years, she was asking the Securitv Commission to conduet
an examination of those procedures to see whether they matched
today's ecircumstances and to recommend any necessary changes.
The terms of reference for the Security Gommission's enquiry
(a copy of which she gave to Mr. Foot) would be virtually the
same as those of the Radcliffe Committee which had carried out the
last review in 1961-62. If we proceeded in this way she believed
that the morale of the Security Service would be sustained znd
confidence established in ocur ability to prevent their penetration
in future.

In response to gquestions by Mr. Foot, the Prime Minister
confirmed that the enquiry by the Security Commission would not
re—-examine the allegations against Sir Roger Hollis which had
already been rebutted by the earlier investigations. As for the
other charges in the book, many of them were unsubstantiated.
The difficulty about saying that some of them were inaccurate
was that this would lead to demands for her to say which stories
were inaccurate and which were accurate,

Mr, Foot said that he was grateful to the Prime Minister for
letting him know in advance the main points of her statement. He
agreed with the way she was handling the matter and he would support
her proposal for a review of security prﬂcedures by the Eecurlty

Commission. Mr. Callaghan had sugsested in the debate on
that there should be an enquiry. ThAL idea had not been tanen up
by the Government at that time, and he would welcome their re1ai ess

to have an enquiry on this occasion.

Mr. Hattersley asked whether Sir Roger Hollis could be given
a clean bill of health. The Prime Minister said that it was not
possible to provehis innocence conclusively. The allegations against
- him had been thoroughly investigated and those investigations
subsequently reviewed by Lord Trend. Nothing to incriminate
Sir Roger Hollis had emerged from these enquiries. The book also
contained allegations about former Members of Parliament, and she
proposed to deal with those by saying that it would not be in the
national interest for her to go beyond what she was saying in her
statement.

. Mr, Hattersley then asked whether the- enquiry by the
Security Commission would be confined solely to security procedurss
or whether it would alsoembrace the accountability of the Security
Service. Mr. Foot added that when Mr. Callaghan had proposed an
engquiry in the Blunt debate he had suggested that it should consider
whether any change was needed in relations between Ministers and
the heads of the Intelligence Services and whether Parliament could
be involved more in the Maxwell iyie rules and the Wa in whicin
those rules were applfd and ocvserved. This was some g iy
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the forthcoming enquiry might consider. He was sure that there

would be pressure from some parts of the House for the scope of
the -enquiry to be extended to embrace the question of accountability.

The Prime Minister said that she was not ready to broaden the
term of reference of the Security Commission's enquiry any further.
Ministers were responsible for overseeing the Security Service and
she and the Home Secretary kept very closely in touch with the
Director General of the Security Service. Parliament had to trust
Ministers, and she hoped that the Opposition would back her and the
Home Secretary just as, when the Conservative Party had been in
Opposition, she had supported Mr. Callaghan and Mr. Rees on security

matters.

Mr. Foot said that he did not want to be obstructive. He
would welcome the enquiry by the Security Commission, though he
would go on to say that he hoped that the Government would look
again at what Mr. Callaghan had proposed during the Blunt debate
with regard to the scope of an enquiry.

I am sending a copy Gf this letter to David Wright (Cabinet
Office).

Un
WM!

M Lt

J.F. Halliday Esq
Home Office
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Ref: AQ04545

CONFIDENTIAL

PRIME MINISTER

e

I attach a draft of a Speaking Note for the
meeting which you propose to have with the Leader
of the Opposition later today.

I am sending copies of this minute and of the
draft to the Home Secretary, the Foreign and
Commonwealth Secretary, the Lord Chancellor,
the Chancellor of the Duchy of Lancaster and the

Attorney General,

(Robert Armstrong)

25th March 1981

CONFIDENTIAL




SPEAKING NOTE

You will have seen the extracts from Chapman Pincher's book Their

Trade is Treachery published in the Daily Mail this week,

o I am afraid that there can be no doubt that Pincher has had access to
someone who had first hand and detailed knowledge of Security Service inves-
tigations and files, and who has been guilty of a gross betrayal of trust, The
Security Service are investigating to see if they can discover who is responsible,

Any question of prnsecutinn would of course be for the Attorney General,

e —

3. In my statement tomorrow I shall make it clear that I do not propose

to discuss or comment on any of the detailed allegations in the book, though I

shall have something to say about inaccuracies in Pincher's account of the
Hollis case,

4, We do not propose to institute an inquiry into past penetration of the
Security Service, or into the Hollis case. Itis all a long time ago; it has been
exhaustively investigated over many years, and (in the case of the investigation
of Hollis) reviEwEd-b}r ILord Trend., A new inquiry would be very unlikely to
produce new evidence or significantly different conclusions, and it would involve
a massive diversion of Security Service resources away from the current tasks
which ought to be their main preoccupation,

5. But, even if you take the view (as I do) that the Security Service is not

now penetrated, we need to make sure that the arrangements and prucedur&a

e e e s S -

for safeguardlng against renewed penetration are as good as they can possibly

be both in that area and in the rest of the public service, The existing pro-
cedures date from thirty years ago, and were last reviewed by the Radcliffe
Committee on Eﬂmf?Prﬂcﬂwres twenty years ago. I think it would be timely
to review them again. Since 1964 WE_EE had the Security Commission with
general terms of reference to advise on whether changes in security arrange-
ments are necessary or desirable, I therefore propose to announce in my
statement tomorrow that I have decided, after consulting the Leader of the
Opposition, to ask the Security Commission:

To review the security procedures and practices currently

followed in the public service and to consider what, if any,

changes are required.
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SIR ROBERT ARMSTRONG cc. Mr. Whitmore 98«

I have it from a senior and reputable journalist that
one of Chapman Pincher's most fruitful sources is
Lady Falkender. Indeed, my informant said that most of the
stuff comes from her.

The reason it is coming out now is:

a) the piece recently by Barry Penrose in the
Sunday Times about the removal of a former
Ambassador to Moscow because of an indiscretion
with a KGB woman had put the wind up Sidgwick
and Jackson; were they going to be scooped?

b) consequently theyv brought forward publication
and gquickly tied up serialisation rights with
the Daily Mail;

¢) they had had 20,000 copies of the book bound
last weekend, such was the rush;

d) Lady Falkender and Chapman Pincher are under
contract jointly to write another book for
Sidgwick and Jackson on infiltration into
British liie;

e) there is at least a suspicion that the current
book by Chapman Pincher is an effort to cash in |
on his Falkender information before the joint |
effort with Lady Falkender comes out - no |

honour among thieves. g

95 March, 1981 CONFIDENTIAL B. INGHAM
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Supplementaries on Security

Looking only at the parts of the book published so far in the
Daily Mail, I think that the Prime Minister should be prepared to

deal with at least the following broad areas:-

(i) Isn't the whole series of revelations which have

come out this week clear and undeniable evidence that the

Security Service and the Intelligence Service work as a State
within a State, unaccountable in practical terms to Ministers,

let alone this House, except when they wantand choose to be?

How can Ministers claim that they have real responsibility when
the first time that any Minister was warned about the suspicions
about Hollis was in 1975, 10 years after his retirement?

(ii) Is it not an outrage that MI5 should employ Members
of this House to spy on Party matters, and even to incite their
colleagues to misdemeanours, apparently with the knowledge of
the Security Service? Arecthe Security Services free to make
their own contacts with Members of this House without any
Ministerial scrutiny? 1Is that not a crime against this House and
the sovereignty of Parliament? What are the rules about the
use of Members of Parliament by the Security Services? Does
the Prime Minister know of the details of these contants?

Has the House itself not got the right to know more on all of
this?

(iii) Doesn't the way that Hollis was treated show that the
establishment protects its own, whereas a humble Corporal who
leaks minor secrets to the Russians because he is short of
money is likely to end up in prison for 20 years? Look at the
way Sir Peter Hayman, Sir Geoffrey Harrison and Sir Anthony Blunt
were treated. And now Hollis. too. Isn't this a clear case of

double standards and hypocrisy?




(iv) Are there any more scandals to come? Is the cupboard

really bare? How can the Prime Minister convince herself,
let alone the House, that she has now been told everything?

(v) Why should we be satisfied with another inquiry
by insiders? Has not this spate of revelations made it wvital,
if public confidence is to be sustained, that there should now
be an inquiry by those who represent the people rather than
by those who represent the system?

bﬁS‘

25 March, 1981.
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PRIME MINISTER

Il attach a draft of a Speaking Note for the
meeting which you propose to have with the Leader
of the Opposition later today,

I am sending copies of this minute and of the

draft to the Home Secretary, the Foreign and
Commonwealth Secretary, the Lord Chancellor,

the Chancellor of the Duchy of Lancaster and the

Attorney General,

(Robert Armstrong)

25th March 1981
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SPEAKING NOTE

You will have seen the extracts from Chapman Pincher's book Their

Trade is Treachery published in the Daily Mail this week,

2. I am afraid that there can be no doubt that Pincher has had access to
someone who had first hand and detailed knowledge of Security Service inves~-
tigations and files, and who has been guilty of a gross betrayal of trust, The
Security Service are investigating to see if they can discover who is responsible
Any question of prosecution would of course be for the Attorney General,

S In my statement tomorrow I shall make it clear that I do not propose

to discuss or comment on any of the detailed allegations in the book, though I

shall have something to say about inaccuracies in Pincher's account of the
Hollis case,

4. We do not propose to institute an inquiry into past penetration of the
Security Service, or into the Hollis case. Itis all a long time ago; it has been
exhaustively investigated over many years, and (in the case of the investigation
of Hollis) rEViEwEd.h}' Lord Trend. A new inquiry would be very unlikely to
produce new evidence or significantly different conclusions, and it would involve
a massive diversion of Security Service resources away from the current tasks
which ought to be their main preoccupation,

5. But, even if you take the view (as I do) that the Security Service is not

now penetrated, we need to make sure that the arrangements and procedures

———

for safeguarding against renewed penetration are as good as they can possibly

be, both in that area and in the rest of the public service, The existing pro-
cédures date from thirty years ago, and were last reviewed by the Radcliffe
Committee on Semtﬁ-ﬁ:ﬁncedures twenty years ago. I think it would be timely
to review them again. Since 1964 urz;;e had the Security Commission with
general terms of reference to advise on whether changes in security arrange-
ments are necessary or desirable. I therefore propose to announce in my
statement tomorrow that I have decided, after consulting the Leader of the
Opposition, to ask the Security Commission:

To review the security procedures and practices currently

followed in the public service and to consider what, if any,

changes are required.
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Ref, A04543

MR SANDERS

I now enclose with this minute a set of notes for supplementaries which
have been discussed and cleared with the Departments concerned. 1 also
enclose a background note which deals with some of the main allegations in
Chapman Pincher's book about a variety of named and unﬂﬁﬁ_mﬁdﬁals.

The information in this background note is not for use in answering supple-
mentaries but is designed to provide a brief indication as to the accuracy of
some of the allegations in the book. The background note is based upon
information which has been provided in the main by the Security and Intelligence

Services.

D J Wright

25 March 1981

SECRET COVERING TOP SECRET
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NOTE FOR SUPPLEMENTARY

Mr., Speaker, I hope that the House will appreciate
and respect the fact that I have dealt with these
matters in my statement, which was prepared with
great care, more fully than might have been thought
appropriate in the past., I trust it will be
understood when I say that I can have little or

nothing that I can usefully add.
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Ref, A04542

PRIME MINISTER

Mr. Chapman Pincher's Book

I attach a new version of your draft statement, revised following your
discussion with the Chancellor of the Duchy of Lancaster this morning,

gt The first nine paragraphs are unchanged. The revisions are from
paragraph 10 onwards.

3 New paragraph 12 is a brief summary of the history of existing security
procedures, It explains that they were not introduced until after the Second
World War - and long after the generation of Burgess, Maclean, Philby and
Blunt came into the public service - and gives a very brief account of the stages
of their introduction, A more detailed account can be found in Chapter 5 of the
Radcliffe Report on Security Procedures in the Public Service (Cmnd 1681) which
is referred to in the draft.

4, In preparing this revised draft it has occurred to me that there might be
some advantage in the actual terms of reference for the Security Commission
closely following those given to the Radcliffe Committee in 1961, The more
extended terms of reference could then be converted into an additional para=-
graph in your statement, not formally part of the terms of reference but
describing the matters with which the terms of reference will enable the
Security Commission to deal. It would clearly be more difficult for the Leader
of the Opposition to object to relatively brief terms of reference which followed
the 1961 precedent, If it was decided to make this change, it would be
necessary to tell ord Diplock and Lord Bridge of the new terms of reference
before you made your statement,

e I am sending copies of this minute and of the revised draft to the Home
Secretary, the Foreign and Commonwealth Secretary, the Lord Chancellor, the
Chancellor of the Duchy of Lancaster and the Attorney General.

REOEBEERT ARMSTRONG
25th March, 1981
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@  DEAFT STATEMENT

7 Wgih permission, Mr. Speaker, I will make a statemepnt about
AL PL##Ji 'u%i A

Ljhe book recentYy published which purports to give a detailed
account of the investigations into the penetration of the
Security Service and other parts of the publiec service which
were undertaken following the defection of Burgess and

Maclean in 1951.

% As I said to the House on 21 November 1979, the events
into which those investigations were inguiring began well over
40 years ago. Many of those named or implicated in this book
as having been the subject of investigation have died.

Others have long since retired. None of them is still in the

public service.

3. The extent of penetration was thoroughly investigated after
the defection of Burgess and Maclean, as indeed the author of
this book makes clear. The book contains no information of
security significance which is new to the security authorities.
A1l the cases and individuals referred.to in it have been the
subject of exhaustive investigation. The investigations into
the possibilities of past penetration have inevitably been, as
such investigations have to be, very wide. They have

covered not only those suspected of being guilty; they have
extended to all those who could conceivably fit the often
ipconclusive leads available. The fact that somebody has

been the subject of investigation does not necessarily or even
generally mean that be has been positively suspected: many

people have had to be investigated simply in order to eliminate

them from the ingquiry. r 3 ET
S:C \ Jis . The




4. The results of the investigations into Philby and Blunt
are now well known. There were good reasons for suspecting
2 Tew others, but as it was not possible to secure evidence
on which charges could be founded, they were required to
resign or were moved to work where they had no access to
classified information. iany others were eliminated from

suspicion.

9. Apart from the main allegation, which I will come to, I

do not propose to comment on the other allegations and
insinuations in this book. Nor can I say which allegations
are untrue or unsubstantiated - as some certainly are - since
by doing éﬂ 1 should implicitly be indicating those which were

suspected of having a degree of substance.

6. I must, however, comment upon the grave allegation which
constitutes the main theme of the book, that the late

Sir Roger Hollis, Director General of the Security Service
from 1956 to 1965, was an agent of the Russian Intelligence

Service.

7. The case for investigating Sir Roger Hollis was based on

certain leads which suggested, but did not prove, that there

had been a Russian Intelligence Service agent at a relatively

senior level in British counter-intelligence in the last vears

of the war. None of these leads identified Sir Roger Hollis, or
e pointed specifically or solely in his direction: each of them

could also be taken as pointing to Philby or Blunt. But he

was among those that fitted some of them, and he was therefore

SECRET /investigated.




8. .The jinvestigation took place after Sir Roger Hollis's

retirement from the Security Service. It did not conclusively
prove his innocence; indeed it is very often impossible to prove
inpnocence : that is why in our law the burden of proof is
placed upon those who seek to prove guilt and not on those
who defend  innocence. But no evidence was found that
incriminated him, and the conclusion reached at the end of the
inveatigafinn was that he had not been an agent of the Russian
Intelligence Service.

o vy fo
9. This view was challenged by eowemsssbéwe of those concerned,
however, and in July 1974, Lord Trend, the former Secretary
of the Cabinet, was asked to review in detail the investigations

e
that had taken place isvhGeidiees cises, iveswsss of Sir Roger Hollis

wikisibisbeemeeeddenmemesn 2nd to say whether they had been done in
& proper and thorough manner, and whether in his view the
conclusions reached were justified. He examined the files

and records and he discussed the case* with many of those
concerned, including two people who considered that the
investigatlion ceiletckemempessees chould be reopened.

Mr. Pincher's account of Lord Trend's conclusions is wrong.
The book asseris that Lord Trend "concluded that there was.a
strong prima facie case that MI5 had been deeply penetrated

over many years by someone who was not Blunt", and that he

BECRET [ iris
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neiilher of those things, and notl ing resembling them. On the
conirary, he reviewed the iny stig-éﬁuns of 1he +we :::.-sv.sl j—
s, :nd found that tees had been carried out exhaustively
and objectively. He was satisfied that nothing had been covered
up. He apgreed that none of the relevant leads identified

Sir Roger Hollis as an agent of the Russiap Intelligence
Sen‘iue; and that each of them could be explained by reference
to Philby or Blunt. Lord Trend did not refer, as the book

says he did, to "the possibility that Hollis might have
recruited unidentified Soviet agents into MIS". Again, he

VAR ubs- (e o) niiest
s2id po such thing.Q lLord Trend r
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10, I turn next to the arrangements for guarding against penetration now and

in the future.

11, All Departments and agencies of Government, especially those concerned
with foreign and defence policy and with national security, are targets for
penetration by hostile intelligence services. The Security Service, with its
responsibilities for countering espionage and subversion, is a particula rly
attractive target. Recent security successes (like the expulsion of members of
the Russian Intelligence Service from this country in 1971) would hardly have been
achieved, if the Security Service was penetrated. But, b e
MW hn_x:;ever,,ﬁr&at our confidence
in the integrity and dedication of those now serving ﬂmeed to make sure
that the arrangements for guarding against penetration are as good as they

possibly can be, both in this area and throughout the public service.

12. Existing security procedures were introduced during the years following
the Second World War. Burgess, Maclean, Philby and Blunt were all recruited
by the Russian Intelligence Service before the Second World War, and came into
the public service either before or during the war, well before existing security
procedures were introduced. It was in 1948 that the then Prime Minister
announced the Government's intention to bar Communists and Fascists and their
associates from employment in the public service in connection with work the
nature of which was vital to the security of the State., J This led to the intro-
duction of what came to be known as the "purge prc}cedure:i In 1952 the positive
vetting procedure was instituted, with the object of establishing the integrity of
civil servants employed on exceptionally secret work., In 1956 it was publicly
declared that character defects, as distinct from Communist or Fascist
sympathies or associations, might affect a civil servant's posting or promotion,

In 1962 security procedures and practices in the public service were reviewed by

[/an independent



an independent Committee under the chairmanship of the late Lord Radcliffe.
The Committee's report, published as Cmnd 1681, contained an account of the
procedures, and made various recommendations for modifying them, which the

Government accepted. These procedures, as modified in 1962, are still in

R T T — T T T

13. Th-t:se arrapngements have over the years substantially reduced the
vulnerability of the public service to the threat of penetration, and have served the
interests of national security well. But it is twenty years since they were last
subject to independent review. In that time the techniques of penetration and the
nature of the risks may have changed. We need to make sure that our protective
security procedures have developed to take account of those changes,

14, I have therefore decided ,I’_: after consultation with the rt. hon. Gentleman

the Leader of the Gppnsitinn,__f to ask the Security Commission:

""To review the security procedures and practices currently followed in the

public service and to consider what, if any, changes are reguired".

15, These terms of reference will enable the Security Commission to review,
and to make recommendations as appropriate on, the arrangements and procedures
used in all parts of the public service for the purposes of safeguarding information
and activities involving national security against penetration by hostile intelligence
services, and of excluding from appointments which give access to highly
classified information both those with allegiances which they put above loyalty to
their country, and those who may for whatever reason be vulnerable to attempts to

undermine their loyalty and extort information by pressure or blackmail,

flé. There
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1b. There are difficult balances to be struck here between the need to protect
national security, the nature and cost of the measures required to do so
effectively, the need for efficiency and economy in the public service, and the
individual rights of members of the public service to personal freedom and
privacy. The Security Cormnmission will be able to consider how these balances
ought to be struck in the circumstances of the present time, as they conduct their
review and prepare their recommendations. It will be my intention to make their
findings known to the House in due cours e, to the extent that it is consistent with

national security to do so.
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Telephone: 01 836-6633 4 Little Essex Street.
Private and London, WC2R 3LF
Confidential

24th March 1981.

bk gr i iy, AR

I have just received your private
and confidential letter of March 23rd
which has caused me great distress.

Il do not propose to read the book
for I really now only read with great
difficulty and prefer to stick to Scott
or Dickens. In any case if I am approached
by the press, which I certainly shall be,
I will follow my invariable rule of saying
'no comment’'.

There is another book likely to come
out by a certain Count Tolstoy attacking
Churchill and me and Field Marshal Lord
Alexander. But it all happened thirty-
six years ago. Again I shall say 'no
comment' and hope everyone will do the same.

The Prime Minister
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From: The Rt Hon Edward Heath MBE MP

W 8‘“"L1 v (N,

Wiy

"
L /é- 1-1:‘1 g
3]
i G.,h:-.E H M AP M AN
LT 1ET DiRECTOR

TELEP

2430 e
TELEG RAME T
IMPERIAL TORCUAY T l:] RQUAY "-_“-":‘_’L :--rn""“f-:"'
TELEX «“zo+9 TS 2DG oA A G E R

|
2hth March 1981

¢ e

Thank you for your letter of the 23rd March 1981
about the statement you propose to make in the House
of Commons next Thursday on Chapman Pincher's new
book 'Their Trade is Treachery'.

I am making no comments to the media pending your
statement. Meantime I am glad to know that the Cabinet

Office, as usual, will be available to help with any
of my papers if I need to refresh my memory from them.

\
.

The Rt Hon Margaret Thatcher MP
The Prime Minister

%‘f Trask House Forte Hotels. Reg. Office, 140 Bath Road, Havesr, Middx, UBISAW Reg. in England under Mo 1IEX 36
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DRAFT STATEMENT

With permission, Mr. Speaker, I will make a statement about
the book recently published which purports to give a detailed
account of the investigations into the penetration of the
Security Service and other parts of the public service which
were undertaken following the defection of Burgess and

Maclean in 1951.

2. As I said to the House on 21 November 1979, the events
into which those investigations were inquiring began well over
40 years ago. Many of those named or implicated in this book
as having been the subject of investigation have died.

Others have long since retired. None of them is still in the

public service.

3. The extent of penetration was thoroughly investigated after
the defection of Burgess and Maclean, as indeed the author of
this book makes clear. The book contains no information of
security significance which is new to the security authorities.
All the cases and individuals referred to in it have been the
subject of exhaustive investigation. The investigations into
the possibilities of past penetration have inevitably been, as
such investigations have to be, very wide. They have

covered not only those suspected of being guilty; they have
extended to all those who could conceivably fit the often
inconclusive leads available. The fact that somebody has

been the subject of investigation does not necessarily or even

generally mean that he has been positively suspected: many

people have had to be investigated simply in order to eliminate

them from the inquiry. ™y wr*?f"r=
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4. The results of the investigations into Philby and Blunt
are now well known. There were good reasons for suspecting
a few others, but as it was not possible to secure evidence
on which charges could be founded, they were required to
resign or were moved to work where they had no access to
classified information. Many others were eliminated from

suspicion.

5. Apart from the main allegation, which I will come to, I

do not propose to comment on the other allegations and
insinuations in this book. Nor can I say which allegations
are untrue or unsubstantiated - as some certainly are - since
by doing so I should implicitly be indicating those which were

suspected of having a degree of substance.

6. I must, however, comment upon the grave allegation which
constitutes the main theme of the book, that the late

Sir Roger Hollis, Director General of the Security Service
from 1956 to 1965, was an agent of the Russian Intelligence

sService.

7. The case for investigating Sir Roger Hollis was based on
certaln leads which suggested, but did not prove, that there

had been a Russian Intelligence Service agent at a relatively
senior level in British counter-intelligence in the last years
of the war. None of these leads identified Sir Roger Hollis, or
pointed specifically or solely in his direction; each of them
could also be taken as pointing to Philby or Blunt. But he

was among those that fitted some of them, and he was therefore

SECRET /investigated.
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investigated. I have to tell the House that the account of

the investigation in this book is not accurate, many of the

author's inferences are unjustified, and the coneclusion which

he reaches is not supported by the facts.

8. The jinvestigation took place after Sir Roger Hollis's
retirement from the Security Service. It did not conclusively
prove his innocence; indeed it is very often impossible to prove
innocence : that is why in our law the burden of proof is

placed upon those who seek to prove guilt and not on those

who defend . innocence. But no evidence was found that
incriminated him, and the conclusion reached at the end of the

investigation was that he had not been an agent of the Russian

Intelligence Service.

9. This view was challenged by one or two of those concerned,
however, and in July 1974, Lord Trend, the former Secretary

of the Cabinet, was asked to review in detail the investigations
that had taken place into two cases, those of Sir Roger Hollis
and of one other man, and to say whether they had been done in
a proper and thorough manner, and whether in his view the
conclusions reached were justified. He examined the files

and records and he discussed the cases with many of those
concerned, including two people who considered that the
investigation of Sir Roger Hollis should be reopened.

Mr. Pincher's account of Lord Trend's conclusions is wrong.
The book asserts that Lord Trend "concluded that there was a

strong prima facie case that MI5 had been deeply penetrated

over many years by someone who was not Blunt", and that he

E;EE(::?{EEWFI /"named
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"named Hollis as the likeliest suspect'". Lord Trend said
nelther of those things, and nothing resembling them. On the
contrary, he reviewed the investigations of the two cases in
question, and found that they had been carried out exhaustively
and objectively. He was satisfied that nothing had been covered
up. He agreed that none of the relevant leads identified

Sir Roger Hollis as an agent of the Russian Intelligence
Service, and that each of them could be explained by reference
to Philby or Blunt. Lord Trend did not refer, as the book

says he did, to "the possibility that Hollis might have
recruited unidentified Soviet agents into MIS5". Again, he

sald no such thing. Lord Trend agreed with the conclusion that

Sir Roger Hollis was not and had never been a spy.

10. The events in question took place anything from 20 to

50 years ago. I turn next to the arrangements and procedures
for guarding against penetration now and in future. All
Departments and agencies of Government, especially those con-
cerned with foreign and defence policy and with national
security, are targets for penetration by hostile intelligence
services. The Security Service, with its responsibilities

for countering espionage and subversion, is a particularly
attractive target. The generation of Burgess, Maclean, Philby
and Blunt has long since passed into retirement. Recent
security successes (like the expulsion of members of the Russian
Intelligence Service from this country in 1971) would hardly

have been achieved, if the Security Service was penetrated.

A ST
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11. But, however sure we may be that the Security Service
is not now penetrated and however great our confidence in the
integrity and dedication of those now serving in it, we need
to make sure that the arrangements for guarding against
penetration are as good as they can possibly be, both in this

area and throughout the publiec service.
12. I have therefore decided, after consultation with the
rt. hon. Gentleman, the Leader of the Opposition, to ask the

Security Commission:

To review and make recommendations as appropriate on

the arrangements and procedures used in all parts of

the public service for the purposes of safeguarding
information and activities involving national security
against penetration by hostile intelligence services,

and of excluding from appointments which give access to
highly classified information both those with allegiances
which they put above loyalty to their country, and those
who may for whatever reason be vulnerable to attempts to
undermine their loyalty and extort information by

pressure or blackmail.

13. There are difficult balances to be struck here between

the need to protect national security, the nature and cost of
the measures required to do so effectively, the need for
efficiency and economy in the publie service, and the individual
rights of members of the public service to personal freedom and

privacy. The Security Commission will be able to consider how

{fr.‘f’q ? TT /these
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these balances ought to be struck in the ecircumstances of
the present time, as they conduct their review and prepare
their recommendations. It will be my intention to make their

findings known to the House in due course, to the extent that

it 1s consistent with national security to do so.
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Ref, A04533

PRIME MINISTER

Chapman Pincher's Book

I attach a revised version of the two draft statements, reflecting
comments made by you and others over and since the weekend.,

Ay I have still to show Lord Trend the revised version: I will let you know
if I have anything to report as a result,

a5 Lord Diplock has told me that he is ready to accept the proposed
reference to the Security Commission. He is content with the terms of
reference which we wrote him before the weekend. I have made a minor
change in them, reflecting your comments: I should like to show him the
revised text tomorrow, if you are content with it. He proposes to conduct
the inquiry with Lord Bridge, but does not want any other member of the
Securily Commission with them,

4, I have obtained a copy of the book from the publishers. Itis provided
on the understanding that we will not reveal any parts of the contents to the
Press or broadcasting media before publication date (which is on Thursday,

26 March) and on the understanding that we are not seeking to prevent or delay
publication of the book, I am sending a copy of the book with this minute,
Notes for supplementaries will follow shortly,

5. I am sending copies of this minute and the revised version of the two

draft statements to the Home Secretary, Foreign and Commonwealth Secretary

and the Attorney General,

ROBERT ARMST RONG

24 March 1981

XIMM"AMJG/ ad he w cadet
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DERAFT STATEMENT

With permission, Mr. Speaker, I will make
a statement about the book recently published which
purports to give a detailed account of the inves-
tigations into the penetration of the Security Service
and other parts of the public service which were
undertaken following the defection of Burgess and
Maclean in 1951,

2. As I said to the House on 21st November 1979,
the events into which those investigations were
inquiring began well over 40 years ago. Many of
those named or implicated in this book as having
been the subject of investigation have died. Others
have long since retired. MNone of them is still in
the public service.

i The extent of penetration was thoroughly
investigated after the defection of Burgess and
Maclean, as indeed the author of this book makes
clear, The book contains no information of
security significance which is new to the security
authorities. All the cases and individuals referred
to in it have been the subject of exhaustive inves-
tigation. The investigations into the possibilities
of past penetration have inevitably been, as such
investigations have to be, very wide. They have
covered not only those suspected of being guilty;
they have extended to all those who could
conceivably fit the often inconclusive leads
available. The fact that somebody has been the
subject of investigation does not necessarily or even

generally mean thathehas been positively suspected:
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many people have had to be investigated simply in

order to eliminate them from the inquiry. [Th::

process of investigation has continued over many
years, and has not ceased today: whenever new
information becomes available the investigations are
resumeg.]

4. The results of the investigations into Philby
and Blunt are now well known. There were good
reasons for suspecting a few others, but as it was not
possible to secure E?id?nﬂiﬂn which charges could be

re

founded they werem to resign or we_re‘muved to

work where they had no access to u-anu:lsi::b

information. Many others were eliminated from
suspicion,

5. Apart from the main allegation, which I will
come to, I do not propose to comment on the v e~
allegations and insinuations in this book. Nor can I
say which allegations are untrue or unsubstantiated -
as some certainly are - since by doing so I should
implicitly be indicating those which were suspected of
having m:-udegree of substance.

6. I must, however, comment upon the grave,

M allegation which constitutes the
main theme of the book, that the late
Sir Roger Hollis, Director General of the Security
Service from 1956 to 1965, was an agent of the
Russian Intelligence Service.

e The case for investigating Sir Roger Hollis

was based on certain leads which suggested, but did

not prove, that there had been a Russian Intelligence
- )
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Service agent at a relatively senior level in British
counter-intelligence in the last years of the war.
None of these leads identified Sir Roger Hollis, or

-’h-*-—...

pointed specifically or snldym each of
them could also be taken as pointing to Philby or Blun
Butfhe was among those that fitted some of them, and
he was therefore investigated. I have to tell the
House that the account of the investigation in this
book i:njnt;ccurate, many of the author's inferences
are unjustified, and the conclusion which he reaches
is not supported by the facts.

8. The investigation took place after
Sir Roger Hollis's retirement from the Security
Service. It did not conclusively prove his innocence;
indeed it is very often impossible to prove innocence:
that is why in our law the burden of proof is placed
upon those who seek to prove guilt and not on those
who defend innocence. But no evidence was found
that incriminated him, and most of those concerned
with the investigation considered that he had not been
an agent of the Russian Intelligence Service,

9. This view was challenged by one or two of
those concerned, however, and in July 1974
Lord Trend, the former Secretary of the Cabinet,
was asked to review in detail the investigations that
had taken place into two cases, those of Sir Roger
Hollis and of one other man, and to say whether they
had been done in a proper and thorough manner, and
whether in his view the conclusions reached were
justified emtha-basis-oi-thednvestigation. He
examined the files and records cistieg

SECRET




Tnvestigations, and Je discussed the cases with many
[y —— e S

of those concerned, including seses|who considered
that the investigation of Sir Roger Hollis should be
reopened. Mr. Pincher's account of Lord Trend's
conclusions 18 wrong. The book asserts that

Lord Trend '"concluded that there was a strong prima
facie case that MI5 had been deeply penetrated over
many years by someone who was not Blunt", and that

bt ol
he "named Hollis as thélikeliest suspect'. #He said

neither of those things, and nothing resembling them.

On the contrary, he reviewed the investigations of the

two cases 1n question, and found that they had been
ULM

: o
carried out M&E‘W%M and obieetivity. /*
9 LH.GWE, f*.e was satisfied that

e (At P .
n:l:ﬂ.-"&r-Il.1]_:‘zn-\./l He agreed that none of the relevant leads
identified Sir Roger Hollis as an agent of the RIS, and
that each of them could l::a explained by reference to

ko rol ¢

Philby or Blunt. g agreed with the conclusion that

mmm e r———

Sir Roger H?_l_l!.'is_:: was not and had never been a spy.

Lord Trend did not refer, as the book says he did, to

'""the possibility that Hollis might have recruiteg

unidentified Soviet agents into MI5".,” Again, he said

no such thing.

10. That is how the matter rests., If new
( evidence came to light, the investigation would of
course be reopened. But new evidence is not now

very likely to appear. ! The events in question took

placeiﬂ to 50 years ago. All the leads which sugg-
wre \Aosd * (et ol

est penetration of the Seaurity Eervite[_l:an be accoun-

ted for by reference to known cases, @z—e—ﬂﬂr&se of .

Philby and Bluat) @he exhaustive investigation of




Sir Roger Hollis has been gone over in detail by
Lord Trend; there is no reason to suppose that
another review today would reach a different
conclusion,

11, That-brings-me to the arrangements and
procedures for guarding against penetration now and
in future. All Departments and agencies of
Government, especially those concerned with foreign
and defence policy and with national security, are
targets for penetration by hostile intelligence
services. The Security Service, with its
responsibilities for countering espionage and sub-
version, is a particularly attractive target. The

generation of Burgess, Maclean, Philby and Blunt

has long since passed into retirement, (At
' dge:g ecent

security successes (like the expulsion of members of

the Russian Intelligence Service from this country in
1971) would hardly have been achieved, if the

Security Service was penetratedy and-he-says-that-ire=
currently-penetzated. Sbetievethis-tobe-righd;

wett ] can assure the House that the Service is

constantly vigilant not only against the risk of

current penetration @-&EHW#WE

s ! - e
igr=— .
12. But, however ceafident we may be that

Security Service is not now penetratedt

T
49 be eonfident th:a(t:\the arrangements for guarding

g O
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against mesasmsad penetration are as good as ﬁ]&}r{:aL
be, both in this area and throughout the public

service, @vEr

penetration agd the nature6f the riskg-fmmay have

changed. e need to Be sure that/Our protective

proc res have deyeloped to tgke account of these

ch ngeQ

1 I have therefore decided, after consultation
with the rt. hon. Gentlerman, the Leader of the
Opposition, to ask the Security Commission:

To review and make recommendations as
appropriate on the arrangements and
procedures used in all parts of the public
service for the purposes of safeguarding
information and activities involving
national security against penetration by
hostile intelligence services, and of
excluding from appointments which give
access to highly classified information both
those with allegiances which they put above
loyalty to their country, and those who may
for whatever reason be vulnerable to
attempts to undermine their loyalty and
extort information by pressure or black-
mail.

14. There are difficult balances to be struck here
between the need to protect national security, the
nature and cost of the measures required to do so
effectively, the need for efficiency and economy in
the public service, and the individual rights of

members of the public service to personal freedom

o




and privacy. The Security Commission Jiid=-isaee
shase consideratione in-th-eir—tninday-amds will be able
to consider how these balances ought to be struck in
thecircumstances of the present time, as they
conduct their review and prepare their
recommendations., It will be my intention to make
their findings known to the House in due course, to
the extent that it is consistent with national security

to do so.
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TO IMMEDIATE FCC .
TELEGRAM KUMBER P68 OF £2& MARCFN '

FCLLOWING FOR PUS
YOUR TELLNO B27 !

1. | HAVE SHOWN YOUR TUR TO MR CALL AGHAN. HE HAS EXPRESSED HIS
GRATITUDE TCO THE PRIME MINISTER FOR PUTTING HIM IN THE PICTURE AND
HAS SAID THAT HE WOULD INDEED LIKE TO HAVE A WORD WITH ROBERT
ARMSTRONG IN THE CABINET OFFICE ON HIS RETURN TO LONDON (31 MARCH)
AND TO HAVE AN OPPORTUKITY OF LOOKING THROUGH SOME OF THE RELEVANT
FAPERS TO REFRESH HIS MEMORY.

2. IN THE MEANTIME HE HAS ASKED FOR A COPY OF CHAPMAN PIMNCHER'S
FORTHCOMING BOOK TO BE SENT OUT TO HIM HERE SO THAT HE CAN HAVE AN
OPPORTUNITY OF READING IT BEFORE HIS RETURN TG THE UK INK CASE HE |15
TACKLED EY THE PRESS ON ARRIVAL AT HEATHROW. | HAVE TOLD HIM THAT
WE WILL TRY TO ARRANGE THIS. WE WILL CONTACT EAD TODAY TO SORT OUT
THE MODALITIES,.

THU-HSEI'B :
LIMHE Cofirs o |
@[aftuﬁlﬂ\) Psleif £, HRM?'RD!U.% ,// |

15 |
Eﬁ]fg CLERK CABINET OFFice |
%ﬂﬁh,ﬂthﬂé> :
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1. You may find this background on my briefing to‘the Erltlshﬂ:mﬁ
press here on the Chapmen Pincher article in today's Daily Py’ %
Mail useful:- ax We b e ke SF. prowanrt -
(a) cannot comment on substance Pt bt Ar -ﬁ“ﬂ
h-l"#'. 11*.;:.

(b) the Prime Minister has seen the D%H}r Mail.

(e) we are taking the report seriously

(d) the Prime Minister has asked for a copy of the book to be
acquired and to be studied urgently.

(e) the objective of this would be to put her in a position to
make an oral statement as soon as possible - leading them to
Thursday rather than Wednesday.

2. Under questioning I was chased, of course, on the substance
but made it clear that, while I acknowledged the author of the
book was also writing in the Daily Mail, we had to g0 to the
original text - ie the book.

5« The Prime Minister could operate only on the basis of Mr
Pincher's book. She wanted it examined very carefully so

that at the earliest opportunity she could make a statement.
That stztement woild be as full as possible.

4. 1 sgid that Chapman Pincher was an old campaigner in the security
field, and we would have to examine what he was saying. But

without mentioning Hollis, I sought to make the point that
infiltration was an old story.

5. DBut the press were very interested in whether the Prime Minister
had advance = knowledge of the Daily Mail story/book and whether,

as Pincher says, she had been told of the allegation and

inguiries gbout Hollis. I was uncommunicative and said they

would have to await a statement.

©. How much information would the Prime Minister be able to

lay her hands on, given the passage of time?

I said that she would be given all the relevant information.

7. 1 emphasised that the Prime Minister would have the fullest

report of the available facts. But did she know more than
Pincher? = onemischievous correspondent asked.




I said she would have all the material facts at her disposal

in framing her statement. Mr Pinchers "facts" resulted from his
talking apparently to a host of people who may or may not have
their own reasons for telling him things or have a particular
stand point.

8. The press put it to me that Sir Robert Armstrong would
coordinate the study and preparation of the statement. I did
not deny it.
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rOLLURIAG FOR HIGH COMMISSIONER FROM PUS
1. .50 30 HAVE ASKEDIF F0U ADOULD ARRANGE FOR TH
PERSO:AL EHD TOMFIDENTIRL FRIY THE PRIME MINISTED
P iR CALLAGRAN AS S00R'AS £0S5IBLE.  SAEGINS:

YOU SHOULD «HOW THAT ME ARE EXPECTING: THE PUSLYCATION
1l JE=x OF R HEA BS00X BY CHAPMAW PIHACHER, ERTITLED *THEIR
THADe IS TREACHERY'. TIT WILL ‘CONSIST LARGELY OF -AN ACCOUNT OF
THE IoVESTIGATIONS INTO PERETRATION OF THE SECURITY aiD
IRTELLISERCE ScRVICES JI5ICH WERE UNDERTAXEN FOLLOWING THE
JEFECTION OF SURGESS AHD BACLEAN. ' ITS MAIN THEIE WILL BE T0O
SET OUT THE CASE FOR THE AUTHOR®S BELIEF THAT SIR ROSER HOLLIS,
A YORMER DIRECTOR GERERAL OF THE SECUAITY SERVICE WHO IS HOU
DEAD, #AS PROBABLY AW AGEHT OF THE HHSS_IEI._T_E:_‘:'H'_T,ELLT.EE_HEE _'.5'1-_.."HFIEE.
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IT 4ILL ALSD RerER TD ABOUT TWENTY OTHER PEOPLE, -SOME— —-——

WAMED AiD HOSTLY DEAD, OTHERS HOT NAMED AND LIVING. RS SAVING
BEEN TNVESTIGATED AS POSSIBLE AGENTS OR AS HAVING BEEN I8 SOME
AAY ORANOTHER IHVOLVED HITH PEOPLE LMOWH TO HAVE BESH AGENTS.
THOUBGHE THERE . ARE MANY “THACCURACIES AND URJUSTIFIED IHFERENCES

Ii THE 500K, BHEGACCOUNTS OF A& NUMBER !.']F THESE CASES ARE GIVEN e
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IRECT AWD DETAILED XHOWLEDGE OF THE MATTERS DEALT WITH.

WE EXPECT THE B0OOK T0 BE PUBLISHED OR THURSDAY, <o MARCH:
AND IT IS BEING SERIALISED IN THE *DAILY MATL® IH ADVANCE IDF
PUBLICATIOR.

THE 300K IS BOUND TO ATTRACT A GREAT DEAL OF
PARLIAMENTARY AND PRESS ATTENTION, AND I MAY KEED TO MAKE A-

2=l

N SUCH DETAIL THAT THEY HUST EE DE RIVED FROM PEOPLE di'ITrl
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10 DOWNING STREET

THE PRIME MINISTER 23 March 1981
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You should know that we are expecting the publication
this week of a new book by Chapman Pincher, entitled "Their |
Trade is Treachery". It will consist largely of an account
of the investigations into penetration of the Security and
Intelligence Services which were undertaken following the
defection of Burgess and Maclean. Its main theme will be to

set out the case for the author's belief that Sir Roger Hollis,

a former Director General of the Security Service who 1s now
dead, was probably an agent of the Russian Intelligence Service.

It will also refer to about twenty other people, some
named and mostly dead, others not named and living, as having
been investigated as possible agents or as having been in some
way or another involved with people known to have been agents.
Though there are many inaccuracies and unjustified inferences
in the book, the accounts of a number of these cases are given
in such detail that they must be derived from people with
direet and detailed knowledge of the matters dealt with,

We expect the book to be published on Thursday, 26 March;
and it is being serialised in the Daily Mail in advance of

publication,

The book is bound to attract a great deal of Parliamentary
and press attention, and I may need to make a statement in the
House of Commons, possibly as soon as Thursday, 26 March.

/ I send you




I send you this letter now, as you may be approached by
the press and asked to comment. I dare say that you will prefer
to make no comment, at any rate before I have made my statement.
If in the meantime you would like to refresh your memory of your
own involvement in these affairs, or indeed to look at the papers
you saw while you were Prime Minister, would you like to get in
touch with Robert Armstrong in the Cabinet Office, who will give

whatever help he can.

The Rt. Hon., James Callaghan, MP.
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You should know that we are expecting the publication

this week of a new book by Chapman Pincher, entitled "Their
Trade is Treachery". It will consist largely of an account
of the investigations into penetration of the Security and
Intelligence Services which were undertaken following the
defection of Burgess and Maclean. Its main theme will be to

set out the case for the author's belief that Sir Roger Hollis,

a former Director General of the Security Service who is now
dead, was probably an agent of the Russian Intelligence Service.

It will also refer to about twenty other people, some
named and mostly dead, others not named and living, as having
been investigated as possible agents or as having been in some
way or another involved with people known to have been agents.
Though there are many inaccuracies and unjustified inferences
in the book, the accounts of a number of these cases are given
in such detail that they must be derived from people with
direct and detailed knowledge of the matters dealt with.

We expect the book to be published on Thursday, 26 March;

and it is being serialised in the Daily Mail in advance of

publication.

The book is bound to attract a great deal of Parliamentary
and press attention, and I may need to make a statement in the
House of Commons, possibly as soon as Thursday, 26 March.

/ I send you




I send you this letter now, as you may be approached by
the press and asked to comment. I dare say that you will prefer
to make no comment, at any rate before I have made my statement.

If in the meantime you would like to refresh your memory of your
own ilnvolvement in these affairs, or indeed to look at the papers
you saw while you were Prime Minister, would you like to get in
touch with Robert Armstrong in the Cabinet Office, who will give

whatever help he can.

The Rt. Hon. Edward Heath, MBE, MP. A
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You should know that we are expecting the publication

&

this week of a new book by Chapman Pincher, entitled "Their
Trade is Treachery". It will consist largely of an account

of the investigations into penetration of the Security and
Intelligence Services which were undertaken following the
defection of Burgess and Maclean. Its main theme will be to
set out the case for the author's belief that Sir Roger Hollis,

a former Director General of the Security Service who is now
dead, was probably an agent of the Russian Intelligence Service.

It will also refer to about twenty other péﬂple, some
named and mostly dead, others not named and living, as having
been investigated as possible agents or as having been in some
way or another involved with people known to have been agents.
Though there are many inaccuracies and unjustified inferences
in the book, the accounts of a number of these cases are given
in such detail that they must be derived from people with
direct and detailed knowledge of the matters dealt with.

We expect the book to be published on Thursday, 26 March;
and it is being serialised in the Daily Mail in advance of

publication.

The book is bound to attract a great deal of Parliamentary
and press attention, and I may need to make a statement 1n the

House of Commons, possibly as soon as Thursday, 26 March.

/I send you




I send you this letter now, as you may be approached by
the press and asked to comment, I dare say that you will prefer
to make no comment, at any rate before I have made my statement.
If in the meantime you would like to refresh your memory of your
own involvement in these affairs, or indeed to look at the papers
you saw while you were Prime Minister, would you like to get in
touch with Robert Armstrong in the Cabinet Office, who will give

whatever help he can.

o VA

Ty

The Rt. Hon. The Lord Home of Hirsel, KT, DL.
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You should know that we are expecting the publication
this week of a new book by Chapman Pincher, entitled '"Their
Trade is Treachery". It will consist largely of an account
of the investigations into penetration of the Security and
Intelligence Services which were undertaken following the
defection of Burgess and Maclean. Its main theme will be to
set out the case for the author's belief that Sir Roger Hollis,

a former Director General of the Security Service who is now
dead, was probably an agent of the Russian Intelligence Service.

It will also refer to about twenty other people, some
named and mostly dead, others not named and living, as having
been investigated as possible agents or as having been in some
way or another involved with people known to have been agents.
Though there are many inaccuracies and unjustified inferences
in the book, the accounts of a number of these cases are given
in such detail that they must be derived from people with
direct and detailed knowledge of the matters dealt with.

We expect the book to be published on Thursday, 26 March;
and it is being serialised in the Daily Mail in advance of

publication,

The book is bound to attract a great deal of Parliamentary
and press attention, and I may need to make a statement in the
House of Commons, possibly as soon as Thursday, 26 March,

i

/1 send vou




I send you this letter now, as you may be approached by
the press and asked to comment, particularly as you are referred
to by name as someone to whom Pincher has talked during the course
of his inquiries. I dare say that you will prefer to make no
comment, at any rate before I have made my statement. If in the
meantime you would like to refresh your memory of your own
involvement in these affairs, or indeed to look at the papers
you saw while you were Prime Minister, would you like to get in
touch with Robert Armstrong in the Cabinet Office, who will give

whatever help he can.

97
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The Rt. Hon. Sir Harold Wilson, KG, OBE, FRS, MP.
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You should know that we are expecting the publication
this week of a new book by Chapman Pincher, entitled "Their
Trade is Treachery"., It will consist largely of an account
of the investigations into penetration of the Security and
Intelligence Services which were undertaken following the
defection of Burgess and Maclean. Its main theme will be to
set out the case for the author's belief that Sir Roger Hollis,

a former Director General of the Security Service who is now
dead, was probably an agent of the Russian Intelligence Service.

It will also refer to about twenty other people, some
named and mostly dead, others not named and living, as having
been investigated as possible agents or as having been in some
way or another involved with people known to have been agents.
Though there are many inaccuracies and unjustified inferences
in the book, the accounts of a number of these cases are given
in such detail that they miist be derived from people with

direct and detailed knowledge of the matters dealt with.

We expect the book to be published on Thursday, 26 March;

and it is being serialised in the Daily Mail in advance of

publication.

The book is bound to attract a great deal of Parliamentary
and press attention, and I may need to make a statement in the

House of Commons, possibly as soon as Thursday, 26 March.

/] I send you




I send you this letter now, as you may be approached by
the press and asked to comment, particularly as you are referred
to by name as someone to whom Pincher has talked during the course

of his inquiries, I dare say that you will prefer to make no
comment, at any rate before I have made my statement. If in

the meantime you would like to refresh your memory of your own
involvement in these affairs, or indeed to look at the papers you
saw while you were Prime Minister, would you like to get in touch
with Robert Armstrong in the Cabinet Office, who will give

whatever help he can.

The Rt. Hon. Harold Macmillan, OM, FRS.
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SECRET AND PERSONAL

MR, WHITMORE
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The Prime Minister will probably not have
time to read Chapman Pincher's book from cover to
cover; but in case she wants to glance at it I attach
a copy of the page proof.

As you know, we are not supposed to have it,
or indeed to know of its existence. Hence the grading

at the top of this minute,

(Robert Armstrong)

20th March 198 1_

SECRET AND PERSONAL
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Sir Jan Bancroft and I saw Lord Diplock this" mni*mng, to tell h]irn_ab.:rut

the proposed reference to the Security Commission,

2, I outlined the background to the reference, and gave him a copy of the
drait terms of reference, making it clear that these were st1ll subject to the
approval of Ministers,

A Lord Diplock said that he had been intending to retire from the
chairmanship of the Security Commission as soon as the report of the
current inquiry (into the Wagstaff case) was completed and published.

Sir Jan Bancroft and I urged him to defer his retirement until the proposed

new inquiry was completed. He obviously felt that that might be rather
longer than he would wish; Sir Ian Bancroft therefore suggested that he should

take on the inquiry at the outset, on the understanding that he might retire

H-
after a few months and hand over to Lord Bridge, who would in the meantime

_h—_.—
work on the inquiry with him,
—

4.  Lord Diplock said he would like to discuss this with Lord Bridge and
let me know his answer after the weekend,

B We discussed who might sit with Lord Diplock for the purposes of this
inquiry. We explained the possible difficulties about Lord Allen of Abbeydale
or Lord Greenhill, It became clear that Lord Dlplmzk was beginning to think

in terms of himself and Lord Bridge doing the 1nqmr1,.r on their own. We did

not discourage this: it could well be both effective and expeditiuus.

T | — i

(Robert Armstrong)

20th March 1981

SECRET
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SECRET

MR, WHITMORE

I attach a draft of a letter which the Prime Minister might send to
all her predecessors about the Chapman Pincher book,

A You will see that the letter is by way of a warning of what is coming,
and an offer of briefing and access to papers. It does not go into the
substance; nor does it foreshadow the contents of the Prime Minister's
statement,

3. If the Prime Minister agrees, [ believe that it would be useful if the
letters could be typed and signed before the Prime Minister goes to
Maastricht, but left undated. I envisage that they should issue on Monday,
23rd March (and be so dated) if the fact that the book is coming out is by then
public knowledge and especially if serialisation starts that day; but perhaps
the Prime Minister would leave it to the discretion of the Home Secretary
to authorige dispatch in her absence, if it is not possible to take a dedsion
before she goes,

4. I am sending copies of this minute and the draft letter to the
Private Secretaries to the Home Secretary and the Foreign and Commonwealth

Secretary and to the Legal Secretary to the Law Officers.

(Robert Armstrong)

20th March 1981

SECRET




DRAFT LETTER FROM THE PRIME MINISTER TO

The Rt, Hon, Harold Macmillan, OM, FRS

The Rt. Hon, The Lord Home of Hirsel, KT, DL

The Rt. Hon. Sir Harold Wilson, KG, OBE, FRS, MP
The Rt. Hon. Edward Heath, MBE, MP

The Rt Hon, James Callaghan, MP

You should know that we are expecting the publication
this week of a new book by Chapman Pincher, entitled "Their

Trade is Treachery', It will

consist largely of an account of the investigations into penetra=-
tion of the Security and Intelligénce Services which were
undertaken following the defection of Burgess and Maclean,

Its main theme will be to set out the case for the author's

& — e e

belief that Sir Roger Hullis,[Di:rec:tDr General of the Security
el "'L""""}-_ Eervic% was promably an agent of the Russian Intelligence
Service,

It will also refer to about twenty other people, some
named and mostly dead, others not named and‘gn.&ﬂpy living,

[N E'nl-“"{'_.l
as having been investigated as possible sgiLe-e or as having been

in some way or another involved with people known to have been
p;hwa:.q Though there are many inaccuracies and unjustified
inferences in the book, the accounts of a number of these cases
are given in such detail that they must be derived from people
with direct and detailed knowledge of the matters dealt with.

We expect the book to be published on Thursday,

.
26th March; Jit is being serialised in the Daily Mail in advance

of publication. el L -
e
The book is bound to emedbe a great deal of
cllir- ..:-"q Faa™ =
Parliamentary and Press M, and I c 1

need to make a statement abewt-it in the House of Commons,

possibly as soon as Thursday, 26th March,

—]_“.
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I send you this letter now, simee you may be approached
by the Press and asked to comment :’_,_ particularly as you are
referred to by name as someone to whom Pincher has talked
during the course of his inquirie__?: I dare say that you will
prefer to make no comment, at any rate before I have made my
statement. Ifin the meantime you would like to refresh your
memory of your own involvement in these affairs, or indeed to
look at the papers you saw while you were Prime Minister,

would you like to get in touch with Robert Armstrong in the

Cabinet Office, who will give whatever help he can,
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SECRET AND PERSONAL

MR. WHITMORE

L = =

If the Prime Minister is content with my
proposal to offer her predecessors briefing and access
to papers, we shall need to have ready the papers
which each of them saw when he was Prime Minister.

Perhaps it would be useful if Confidential Filing could

start looking them out.

(Robert Armstrong)

20th March 1981

SECRET AND PERSONAL
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I attach a revised version of the draft statement on Mr. Chapman
Pincher's book, taking account of the decisions taken and suggestions made at
your meeting on 18th March (Mr. Whitmore's note of that date). The draft has

been discussed with the Home Office, the F::rr-:-:iEn and Commonwealth Office, the
R e e ey -

Security Service and the SIS, and reflects their comments and sug Eestians. I

have also discussed it with Sir Jan Bancroft, who is your principal adviser on

references to the Security Commission.

2 I should draw your attention to the following points:

(1) Paragraph 6 invites you to talk of "the grave, but I believe untrue,
allegations" about Sir Roger Hollis. The phrase "but I believe untrue"
of course anticipates what follows; but I think that that is in the
circumstances no bad thing,

(2) The statement (in the last sentence of paragraph 8) of the view of most of
those who were concerned with the inquiry into the Hollis case has been

strengthened, on the suggestion and with the full support of the new
— T L ——

Deputy Director General of the Security Service, who was one of those

- sea TR Lol

concerned,
———j—

(3) Ihave discussed with Lord Trend what should be said about his report.

He helped to draft and is content with paragraph 9.
———————— e Y
(4) At the end of paragraph 11, the draft says of the arrangements for main-
e
taining vigilance against penetration of the Security Service: "and they
are not purely internal: they include a measure of external supervision'.

That external supervision is, of course, Lord Trend. The statement,

as now drafted, is at pains not to imply a continuing role for Lord Trend.

=]=
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He himself wondered whether it would be better to leave those words out:
they would invite the question: what does the external supervision consisi

0of? But he is content to leave it to you to decide; and, if you are asked,

he is content for you to say that it is Lord Trend., The Home Office are
B e P el e e, [ PPy

inclined to leave the words out; the Security Service think that it adds

strength to refer to external supervision, and would rather leave the wort
N

.ii'—- I do not have a strong view either way: I started by thinking that the
thought is a useful one, but the draft suggests that you should say that you
will not describe the arrangements, and as they are in any case to be
reviewed by the Security Commission it is not strictly necessary to add

the detail about external supervision.

THIS IS A COPY. THE ORIGINAL £
RETAINED UNDER SECTION 3 (4]

3. T
OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS AC
4. Notes for supplementaries will be available when you get back from
Maastricht.
5. As to procedure:

(2)

(b)

I have warned the Chancellor of the Duchy, and am warning the Lord

Chancellor this afternoon,
Ry

Sir Jan Bancroft and I are to see Lord Diplock today; as agreed, we will

A T e

warn him of the intention to make the reference to the Security.
Commission and invite him to comment on the draft terms of reference,

making it clear that they are still subject to Ministerial approval,
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(¢) Ihave seen Lord Trend, and am seeing Lord Hunt of Tanworth this after-

- - L

noon.

d I hope to have draft letters to your predecessors available for you by this
P P ¥ o

evening. If you are content with them, perhaps they could be typed and
signed but not dated; and perhaps you would give the Home Secretary
discretion to authorise their despatch before you come back from
Maastricht, if the situation seems to call for it. Otherwise they can
wait until you are back.
6. Two points on the Security Commission:
(a) Iam told that Lord Diplock is on the point of resigning, He will
presumably be succeeded by Lord Bridge, who is on the Commission (and
e =
Deputy Chairman). When Sir Ian Bancroft and I see him, we will try to
discourage him from resigning at this moment; but, if he is determined
to do so, it may be that we should try to complete the formal change
before announcing the reference,
(b) I wonder whether, as the reference has now turned out - covering not just
the security and intelligence services - it is necessary or indeed right to
rule out Lord Allen of Abbeydale and Lord Greenhill from consideration
for this inquiry. Particularly if we have a new Chairman, the
Commission could do with one member for this inquiry with direct
experience of the operation of vetting procedures and personnel security

problems in the public service. If that were acceptable, it might point to

choosing a larger membership than usual: say, four rather than two in
addition to the Chairman.
i I am sending copies of this minute and of the draft statements to the Home

Secretary, the Foreign and Commonwealth Secretary, the Attorney General and

Sir Ian Bancroft,

ROBERT MSTRONG

i
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DEAFT STATEMENT

With permission, Mr. Speaker, I will make a
statement about the book recently published which
purports to give a detailed account of the investiga=-
tions into the penetration of the Security Service and
other parts of the public service which were under-
taken following the defection of Burgess and Maclean
in 195].

2, As I said to the House on 21st November 1979,
the events into which those investigations were
inquiring began well over 40 years ago. Many of
those named or implicated in this book as having
been the subject of investigation have died. Others
have long since retired. None of them is still in the
public service. E’fe are concerned with fairly
ancient histnrya

3. The extent of penetration was thoroughly
investigated after the defection of Burgess and
Maclean, as indeed the author of this book makes
clear, The book contains no information of security
significance which is new to the security authorities,
All the cases and individuals referred to in it have
been the subject of exhaustive investigation, The
investigations into the possibilities of past penetration
have inevitably been, as such investigations have to b
very wide., They have covered not only those
suspected of being guilty; they have extended to all
those who could conceivably fit the inconclusive leads
available, The fact that somebody has been the
subject of investigation does not necessarily or even

generally mean that he has been positively suspected:




many people have had to be investigated simply in
order to eliminate them from the inquiry. The
process of investigation has continued over many
years, and has not ceased today: whenever new
information becomes available the investigations are
resumed,

4, The results of the investigations into Philby
and Blunt are now well known, There were good
reasons for suspecting a few others, but as it was not
possible to secure evidence on which charges could

ASfe ol o relpa 0N L
be founded they wereﬁnnved to' work where they had
no access to sensitive information Gé—iwade-sslead—s0
weedgn, Many others were eliminated from
suspicion. o .
I:%w - Ta ten Al dsn | ahlnl AU copate

5. L In general I do not propose to comment on the
allegations and insinuations in this book. Nor de=E

ten | -

M which allegations are untrue or

unsubstantiated - as some certainly are - since by

doing so I should implicitly be indicating those which
Awipied 4| llm?

were #veuwghitobawe Some degree of substance, Et

would not be right owfadss for me $o-nanre—exr to

implicate anyone who has not either been found guilty

by a court of law or is not otherwise publicly known to

have worked for a hostile intelligence service (like

i those who declared themselves by deiectinga

6. I must, however, comment upon the grave,
but I believe untrue, allegation which constitutes the
main theme of the book, that the late
Sir Rﬂger Hollis, Director Generaliof the Security
Service from 1956 to 1965, was an agent of the

Russian Intelligence Service, And J:believe that the

10
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House is entitled to be assured not only that the

investigations into past penetration 11ave,és I have
already said:] been as thorough as possible, but also
that we have the best possible arrangements to guard
against any recurrence of penetration now or in the
future,

[ First, then as to Sir Roger Hollis, Ngne of
the available leads pointed ﬂm to him; -l
each of them could also be taken as pointing to

O
Philby or Blunt. But his pw»edide was among those

that fitted some of them, and he was therefore
investigated. I have to tell the House that the case
made out by the author of this book simply does not
stand up; his account of the investigation is
inaccurate and many of his inferences are
unjustified; and on one particularly important point
he is entirely wrong,

8. The investigation took place after
Sir Roger Hollis's retirement from the Security

Service. It did not conclusively prove his

innucencer Ut is often impossible to prove
innocence: that is why in our law the burden of
proof is placed upon those who seek to prove guiltand
not onthose who defend innocence. But no evidence
wag found that incriminated him, and most of those
concerned with the investigation considered that he
had not been an agent of the Russian Intelligence
Service,

B This view was mt accepted by one or two of

those concerned, however, and in 1974 Lord Trend,

the former Secretary of the Cabinet, was asked to




review in detail the whole of the investigation that had
taken place, and to say whether it had been done in a
proper and thorough manner, and whether in his view

the conclusion reached was justified|on the basis of

: taLg maemt il
cle A warel l.l:q'? llr v the investigation) He was given access to all the
i m,{— ‘4-"'. files and records of the investigation, and he

discussed the case with many of those concerned,
A
including some who considered that the investigation

should be reopened., Mr. Pincher's account of

L HM%
Lord Trend's conclusions could hardly further

u L I~ ot 2 l"t“{f"' U from the truth. Reporting in 1975, Lord Trend did
! ~+o b 7 A ;m-h not, as the book asserts, '"nmame Hollis as the
. »  likeliest suspect'. On the contrary, he found that
o vy et Ay
| Co A >, the investigation had been carried out exhaustively
| - ot [ et 1~ '
| Lf-( £ "—-—-LL I “m and objectively, and he agreed with those who were
U'-'*‘""[d 2+ ereho e Ul satisfied on the basis of the investigation that there
) pasds
I.ﬁ.:’ f}H_ lool. & was no evidence that Sir Roger Hollis was or had

2 "'r LAC ever been a spy. And it is quite untrue to say, as
L ﬂ..“\m'“jn : ‘_' the book says, that "Lord Trend referred to the
~ . QMM possibility that Hollis might have recruited
Woa i 3 unidentified Soviet agents into MI5", Lord Trend
ol et Fo ente € A+ said no such thing,.
M ot
L f"'"f") ro o~ do 10. That is how the matter rests.
Lt e e e
do'_ ;L {J' - HM “JM-' investigation would of course be reopened/ {f new-
£ e
P eV l.b: ﬁ## evidence came to light, Buf Hret-is %ut OW Very
Wi -, ot oy viaretts
OUJ""J‘ f likely., The events in question took place 20 to 50
[+
-M # f years ago. C’l"—hﬂ.—t-ruﬂrmm

a;ni.d.ﬂn-aaa The thorough investigation already made
has been gone over in detail by Lord Trend; there

is no reason to suppose that another review today

would reach a different conclusion,
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11, That brings me to the arrangements and
procedures for guarding against penetration now and
in future. All Departments and agencies of
Government, especially those concerned with foreign
and defence policy and with national security, are
targets for penetration by hostile intelligence
services, The Security Service, with its
responsibilities for countering espionage and sub-
version, is a particularly attractive target, The
generation of Burgess, Maclean, Philby and Blunt
has long since passed into retiremcnt,@nd none of
those known to have worked for the Russian
Intelligence Service has been at the centre of affairs

or had any real infl uence on security and intelligence
matters for at least 30 years, | Ewen-idthorye wag

perretration—enbonding-heyond the known cases in-the
yearo-guring-and-ailerthe—war—rtdoes ot fotiow tirat

L 'Q._tm pgetratiﬂn now; mrdeedy—tire—evidercepoinmt=—

ey A
Ll e e bt LioT Th‘ﬂe. author of this book

frrrreedd acknowledges that recent security successes
(like the expulsion of members of the Russian
Intelligence Service from this country in 1971) Gould

hardly have been achieved, if the Security Service was

Wt bttt 40 Ol ) b, P
penetrated, MEMMM

P
ed—surrent penetration{ I can assure the House that

the Service is constantly vigilant not only against the
risk of current penetration but also against the
possibility of hitherto undetected past penetration or
compromise which might still have continuing
implications for the integrity of its security. | The

House will not expect me to describe the arrangements

iy




for maintaining that vigilance; but they are very

thorough, taking account, as the House would expect,
of previous experience; and they are not purely
internal: they include a measure of external
supervisir:-n:j

12. But, however confident we may be - as I am -~
that the Security Service is not now penetrated, we
need also to be confident that the arrangements for
guarding against renewed penetration are as good as
they can be, ﬁd‘: = ot oot
wrer~bwi throughout the public service. Over the
years the techniques of penetration and the nature of
the risks may have changed. We need to be sure
that our protective procedures have developed to
take account of these changes,

13. I have therefore decided, after consultation
with the rt. hon, Gentleman, the Leader of the
Opposition, to ask the Security Commission:

To review and make recommendations as
appropriate on the arrangements and
procedures used in all parts of the public
service for the purposes of safeguarding

) sensitive information and areas of work
R e e e e e e S e T

against penetration by hostile intelligence
e e A o i

services, and of excluding from appoint=
L S

ments which give access to highly

classified information both those with
allegiances which they put above loyalty to
their country, and those who may for
whatever reason be vulnerable totersiides
attempts to undermine their loyalty and
extort information by pressure or blacke

mail.

==




14. There are difficult balances to be struck here
between the need to protect national security, the
nature and cost of the measures required to do so
effectively, the need for efficiency and economy in the
public service, and the individual rights of members
of the public service to personal freedom and
privacy. The Security Commission will have these
considerations in their minds, and will be able to
consider how these balances ought to be struck in the
circumstances of the present time, as they conduct
their review and prepare their recommendations,

It will be my intention to make their findings known

to the House in due course, to the extent that it is

consistent with national security to do so,
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BACKGROUND NOTE

"Their Trade is Treachery"

This background note is intended to summarise the information available,
principally from Security Service and 5IS sources, about some of the allegations
against named or unnamed individuals in Chapman Pincher's book, The
information is set out in the order in which the various allegations appear in

the book.
1. Sir Roger Hollis Apart from the distortions of the findings of the Trend

Report, which have been dealt with in the Prime Minister's statement and notes
for supplementaries, the book also containsg a number of other distortions of
facts about Heollis. The following are examples:-
(a) "Elli" - p5 Gouzenko's information on Elli was very vague and
mdﬂd no lead as a possible candidate for the Soviet spy in
MI5. Gouzenko did not say that Elli had been able "to bring
out MI5 files on Soviet Intelligence officers so that they could
see exactly what was known about themselves', The lead on
Elli given by Gouzenko was not only vague; it also referred to
a GRU agent. But the evidence which led to the investigation

of Hollis referred to a %Eﬁ_agent,

(b) Positive vetting - p9 There is nothing to suggest that Hollis

stood in the way of positive vetting procedures in MI5, He
spent much of his career in Protective Security and as Director
General was particularly concerned that MI5 PV procedures
should conform to those of other departments.

(e) Hollis and Peters - pp 25-26 Hollis was carrying out the

instructions of the then Prime Minister, Mr Macmillan, when
he told the case officers on the Peters investigation that the
Prime Minister had ordered that there should be no confrontation
of Peters unless there was direct evidence that he was implicated
in Philby's defection,

(d) "Destruction' of tapes on Blunt - p 36 The first two interviews
of Blunt in 1964 were not recorded on tape. The third and

subsequent interviews were recorded: the tapes and transcripts

are still held.
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(e)

(£)

Philby
(2)

(b)

(c)

| f he b Wi B

Agnes Smedley - pp 39-40 There is no evidence that Hollis knew
the Russian agent, Agnes Smedley, an American journalist,
when he was in China before the war,

Ursula Bearton - p 34 There is no evidence to connect the
Russian agent, Ursula Bearton with Hollis. The fact that she
went to Oxford to live there on arrival from the Far East in
1940 could be explained by the fact that her family lived there.
There is no evidence of a connection with Hollis's simultaneous

presence at Blenheim Palace, the war-time home of MIS5,

""comfortable interview' and the 1955 Macmillan statement - p 13
It is true that a representative of SIS did carry out a series of
interviews with Philby after Helegu“s_ Eﬁhnﬂl had produced his
report. The intention {undc;u-b_t;edl;r“;lspi_r ed by Jim Skardon's
performance with Fuchs) was to see whether the "soft approach"
would produce an admission. It failed. Nevertheless Milmo's
final judgement, that it must be assumed Phllb}r had been a

e

Russlan agent thrt::-ught}ut I"I:I.E SIS career was genErally ac:::ePted

—

The Macmillan statement was prﬂmpted by' a PQ and in the

absence of firm indictable evidence of guilt had to be couched

in exculpatory terms. Following this Philby's friends felt
free to help him find a job. He was in touch with SIS in Beiruit
and passed information to the SIS representative.

choice of Elliott rather than Martin to confront Philby in 1962 - pl5

-

It cannot be confirmed that Martin was deliberately excluded.
He would have been one among several officers who might have
been qualified. The selection of Elliott seems to have been
based on the conviction that persuasion by an old friend might
be more effective. /f;--—— e

offer of immunity to Philby = p 17 G‘he Law D.t'fl::ers decided

that the evidence against Philby was stJ.]J. too thin and therefore

T ——

used their discretion to offer immunity. FPhilby's (written)

e

confession was in some respects misleading (for example that







he had broken with the KGB sih:::rrt]'.}.r after World War II} but there

under cant::c:l. It would however be fair to assume that Philby

and the KGB had discussed contingency plans if he were ever

forced into a corner.

3. Commander Crabb - p 55 Commander Crabb was recruited by an SIS

officer (Bernard Smith) to examine the hull of Ordzonikidze, a cruiser, in
Portsmouth Harbour at the time of the Bulganin and Kruschev visit. Crabb
died, or was killed, in circumstances which it has never been possible to clarify.

4. The "middle-aged American' recruited by Blunt - pp 89, 119-120 The

“middle-aged American' is clearly Michael Whitney Straight, a rich and
influential American, who was recruited by the Russian Intelligence Service
whilst a student at Cambridge University in the 1930s. In an interview conducted
jointly by the FBI and the Security Service in Washington in 1963, Straight stated
that Blunt had recruited him for work for the RIS and that statement led directly
to Blunt's own confession in 1964, Straight was not prepared to give evidence

against Blunt in court. This information has never been published before,

—

e e —

L}

Ta Rado and Maurice Oldfield - p 101 Rado did indeed transit {:a.ircr en route

———

for USSR and tried to defect His attempt was frustrated but he su rwved USSR |

o W

and has been to the West since then as a senior Hunganan civil servant; Ne.:Lthe:l

Tt e R ————

Sir Maurice Oldfield (who was in Cairo at the time) nor Philby either saw Rado

or influenced his fate.

e ———
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8, Lord Inverchapel - p 114 Served as Ambassador in China, the Soviet

Union and the United States. There is no evidence that he was ever disloyal,

P John Cairncross - chapter 16 Cairncross entered the Diplomatic Service

in 1936 and was transferred to the Trea sury in 1938, In an interview carried

out in the United States in 1964, he confessed that he had worked for the Russian

e —

Intelligence Service between 1936 and 1952 whilst in the Diplomatic Service,

Treasury, SIS and GCHQ. He is still alive and lives in Rome. His name has

— e —

periodically been mentioned in the Press as an associate of Blunt.







14. Phoebe Pool - p 137 The allegation, attributed to Blunt, that she was a

Soviet courier is basically correct, although there is no evidence that Blunt saw
her shortly before she died. She suffered from extreme mental instability and
it was during a particularly bad breadkdown that she is reported to have
mentioned the names of Francis Graham-Harrison, whom she knew well, and

Sir Andrew Cohen in a security context.

e —
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25, BSir Geoffrey Harrison - p 189 Sir Geoffrey Harrison, in his last days

as Ambassador in Moscow in 1968, was compromised in the way described,
This has recently been pﬁblicised in the Press and Sir Geoffrey Harrison has

admitted what is alleged to have occurred.

7



_...—_.—l-.._

THIS IS 'S A COPY. THE ORIGINAL 5

~ETAINED UNDER SECTION S ¢
OF THE PUBLIC AECORDS ACT |

._,—.._-.

- 24 March 1981




;
er




} ' %

X M Syl e oS Bk B K,
'ﬂﬁﬂ PEHSﬂHﬂLdﬂi COPY ﬂU;?
=R : OF 7

COPIES

e M&mfm

10 DOWNING STREET 18

From the Principal Private Secretary

SIR ROBERT ARMSTRONG

The Prime Minister held a meeting this morning with
the Home Secretary, the Foreign and Commonwealth Secretary and
the Attorney General to consider your minutes AQ4472, A04473-v
and A0C4474 of 16 March 1981. You, Sir Michael Palliser, Sir Brian
Cubbon, the Director General of the Security Service, the Deputy
Director General of the SIS and Mr Sheldon were alsc present.

The Prime Minister said that Mr Chapman Pincher's book was
certain to arouse a great deal of public interest and lead to
very strong pressure in Parliament for a reaction from her. The
Opposition were likely to seek a debate. She was quite clear
that it would be impossible to hold the position in the House
with the traditional line that the Government did not comment on
intelligence and security matters. She believed that she would
have to make a statement and that she would probably have to do
this sooner rather than later. There was bound to be public
concern that although the events described in Mr Pincher's book
had occurred many years ago, Soviet penetration of the Security
Service was still continuing today. It would therefore be
important to reassure the public that every possible step had been
taken and was continuing to be taken to safeguard the Security
Service against penetration. Equally, the book would strike a
very damaging blow to the morale of the Service unless Ministers
took steps to reassure its members. These considerations pointed
to some Kind of inquiry, which she would announce in her state-
ment. If the meeting shared this view, it would be necessary to
decide the scope of the inoguiry and who should conduet it. On
the latter point, one possibility was the Security Commission.

In discussion there was general agreement on the need for

., the Prime Minister to make a statement. It was pointed out that only
a handful of people in the Security Service were aware of the
investigations that had been carried out into allegations of Soviet
penetration, and Mr Pincher's revelations would come as a considerable
shock to the rest of the Service. Former Director Generals like
Sir Martin Furnival-Jones and Sir Michael Hanley would be particularly
outraged by the part played by some of their former colleagues in the
preparation of the book. It would be very helpful in reassuring past
and present members of the Service if the Prime Minister were to make =
robust statement indicating that the allegations of penetration
had been exhaustively investigated and that procedures to prevent
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further penetration had been made as.foolprocof as possible. It
would be important that any inquiry did not go over once more

the ground which had been covered by the Security Service's own
internal investigations and Lord Trend's inquiry, for to do so

would be to risk giving people like Mr de Mowbray the opportunity

to reopen longstanding allegations and, in the end, tearing apart
the Security Service of today and seriously damaging its morale

and efficiency. While there was general agreement that an inguiry
should not be backward looking and should be confined to reviewing
the existing procedures, including positive vetting, for preventing
Russian penetration, it was pointed out that there were bound to be
charges that the handling of the allegations against Sir Roger Hollis
and other members of the intelligence and security agencies amounted
to a massive cover up by the Establishment. These attacks would be
strengthened by the fact that most of the stories in Mr Pincher's
book about people other than Sir Roger Hollis were largely accurate
and it would be correspondingly difficult to convince the public
that his conclusions about Sir Roger Hellis were ill-founded. More-
over, the statement, which Lord Trend had endorsed, that the case
against Sir Roger Hollis was '"at least not proven" was a weak one
which would raise more questions than it answered and was best not
used publicly.

In further discussion it was agreed that an inquiry into the
current procedures for preventing Soviet penetration of the
intelligence and security agencies and for safeguarding their integrity
was a matter wholly within the terms of reference of the Security
Commission. Although Lord Diplock personally might be reluctant
to take on the inquiry following criticism, not least from the
Opposition, of his recent report on telephone interception, he should
nonetheless be asked to conduct the proposed inquiry. If possible,
the other members of the Commission taking part in the inquiry should
not have had substantial connection with the intelligence and
security agencies; and this pointed to Admiral Sir Horace Law and
Sir Alan Cottrell joining Lord Diplock in the inquiry. The
alternative to using the Security Commission was to set up an
ad hoc committee of former senior Ministers, but the objection to
this course was that virtually all those who might be asked to
take part in the inquiry had themselves been associated with the
intelligence and security agencies in one way or the other when
they had been in office.

The draft statement attached to your minute A04473 was not
considered in detail, but it was agreed that the opening and closing
paragraphs should be amended to avoid direct attacks on Mr Pincher.
It was also agreed that the statement would not be able to deal
with the detailed allegations against all the people named in the
book but it would have to make it clear that the stories about them
were a mixture of truth and falsehood and that, in any case, none
of those mentioned who were still alive were now in the government
service,.
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.The Prime Minister, summing up the discussion, said that
they were agreed that she should make a statement in the House
on Mr Pincher's book. This would announce the establishment of
an inquiry by the Security Commission into the present systems
and procedures for preventing Soviet penetration of the public
service, including the intelligence and security agencies. The
inquiry would not concern itself with allegations about penetration
that had already been thoroughly investigated. The precise timing
of her statement would need to be decided in the light of events
over the next few days, but Thursday 26 March, which was the day
the book was due to be published, appeared to be the most likely
day to make it.

The
The following
steps should now be taken:-

i) Consulting Lord Trend as necessary, you should
revise the draft statement on Mr Pincher's book
in the light of the discussion and in particular
incorporate in it the proposed terms of reference
for the inquiry by the Security Commission. You
should circulate the revised statement to those
present at the meeting.

ii) When the terms of reference of the ingquiry had
been agreed, vou should see Lord Diplock to let him
know that the Prime Minister wished the Security
Commission to undertake the inquiry. She would
see Lord Diplock herself only if he thought there
were difficulties about the Security Commission
carrying out the investigation.

iii) Once the Daily Mail began to serialise the book on
Monday 23 March, vou should ask the publishers for
a copy.

iv) You should warn the Lord Chancellor (in view of
Lord Soames's absence next week) and the Chancellor
of the Duchy of Lancaster that the Prime Minister
would probably be making a statement next week.

v) The line for the Home Secretary to take at Prime
" Minister's Question Time on Tuesday 24 March was
that Mr Pincher's book was being studied urgently
and that the Prime Minister hoped to make a
statement later, possibly on Thursday 26 March.
The same line should be used in dealing with press
inquiries.

vi) She and the Home Secretary would see Mr Foot and
Mr Hatterslev on Wednesday 25 March. Former
Prime Ministers, Home Secretaries and Foreign

“Bh B by p o EE
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warned the same day

Secretaries would need to be
about her statement.

I am sending copies of this minute to Mr Halliday (Home Qffice),

Mr Walden (Foreign and Commonwealth Office), Mr Nursaw (Law Officers’
Department), the Director General of the Security Service and

the Deputy Director General of the SIS.

N .

18 March 1981
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Ref. A04473 : Copy Hﬂ.l of 12 Copies

PRIME MINISTER

Their Trade is Treachery

I warned you on 17th February 1981 (A04690, copy attached) about
Mrzr. Chapman Pincher's forthcoming book with this title on the penetration of the
security and intelligence services, with its main theme that the late
Sir Roger Hollis, Director General of the Security Service from 1956 to 1965, was

—— | -

a spy. Inow learn that the book will be published on 26th March (not the end of
_—__,_.—

R S S

o S
April), and will be serialised in the Daily Mail from 23rd March.
- S
e

THIS IS A COPY. THE ORIGINAL IS
RETAINED UNDER SECTION 3 (4)

3. Despite the general rule against commenting on detailed allegations of the
kind made in Pincher's ook, I do not believe that you will be able to get away
with "no comment'., I think that you will be bound to say something about the
measures taken to investigate and guard against penetration of the security and
intelligence services; and I think that you will have to deal with the main theme
of the book, the allegation that the late Sir Roger Hollis was a spy, because of the
wealth of circumstantial detail (and unjustified inference) with which it is
presented.

4, You were given a summary account of the investigation of Russian

penetration of the Secret Services by my predecessor shortly after you took office

in May 1979. For ease of reference I attach a copy of that summary herewith.

5‘-
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But there is some reason to

think that Mr. Pincher's main source is Mr. Peter Wright, a former member of

the Security Service and of the team that investigated the Hollis case, who is
known to have been one of those dissatisfied with the conclusion of the investigatic

Mr. Wright now lives in Australia, out of reach of the Official Secrets Act,

nursing a grievance about his pension,
6. There is no new information of security value in the book, There does
not seem to be likely to be any value in a reinvestigation of the Hollis case, since

there is no new evidence; nor in another review of the original investigation,

which would only be doing again what was done by Lord Trend in 1975.
Officials do not therefore recormnmend any further action, beyond whatever
e R T W

statement you think right to make. I have tried my hand at a draft statement, on
the assumption that there is to be no further action, and I attach the result here-
with,

7. But you will clearly wish to consider with your colleagues whether
political considerations make some further action necessary., It is not easy to

see what form a further inquiry might take., Perhaps the only possibility is

another review of the investigation, this time by the Security Commission or

conceivably by the Chairman of the Security Commission sitting alone.
8. You will also wish to consider how to deal with the Opposition on this
matter, Mr, Foot knows nothing about the Hollis and "Peters' cases, nor about

the representations made by but Mr. Callaghan was fully

briefed on the whole affair, studied the papers with considerable care, and in the




end expressed himself as satisfied that inquiries into the case against Hollis had

|

been taken as far as it was possible to take them, If Mr. Callaghan is in the

country = I believe he is due to go to I_r_li:iﬁ_shﬂrtly = it might be prudent to offer
to brief him in advance of the publication. I suppose that he could be asked to
tell Mr. Foot; but the right course is probably for you and the Home Secretary
(possibly accompanied by me and the Director General of the Security Service)

to see Mr., Foot and Mr. Hattersley.

ROBERT ARMSTRONG

16th March, 1981

- -




DERAFT STATEMENT

In accordance with the long-standing practice
of successive Governments in these matters, I do not
propose to comment in detail on this publication

,F_-’-‘Their Trade is Treachery', by Chapman Pincheﬂ.

[It is a mixture of truth, inaccuracy, unjustified

Linie:-ence and speculatiﬂn._) It contains no informa-

- —

tion of security significance which is new to the
security authorities. But in view of the theme of the
book the House is entitled to an assurance that
everything possible has been done to investigate past
penetration and to guard against present and future
penetration of the Security Service by the Russian
Intelligence Service, I should also comment upon the
grave but I believe untrue allegations that the late
Sir Roger Hollis, Director General of the Security
Service from 1956 to 1965, was an agent of the RIS.

2, All Departments and agencies of Government,
especially those concerned with foreign and defence
policy, are targets for penetration by hostile
intelligence services. The Security Service, with
its responsibilities for countering espionage and

subversion, is a particularly attractive target. I

can assure the House that it is constantly vigilant not
only against the risk of current penetration but also

against the possibility of hitherto undetected past

penetration or compromise which might still have

continuing implications for the integrity of its
security. The House will not expect me to describe

the arrangements for maintaining that vigilance;

l-ln-
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but they are as thorough as they can be, taking
account of pravious experience, and they are not
purely internal: they include a measure of external
supervision,

5 The investigations into the possibilities of
past penetration have inevitably been, as such
investigations have to be, very wide. They have
covered not only those suspected of being guilty;
they have extended to all those who could
conceivably fit the often vague and indefinite leads
available., It follows that the fact that somebody has
been the subject of investigation does not necessarily
or even generally mean that he has been positively
suspected. Many people have been investigated
simply in order to eliminate them from the inguiry.

4, After the defection of Burgess and Maclean in
1951, there were a considerable number of leads and
suggestions to be followed up, and the inquiries did
indeed go very wide. In the course of the ensuing
inquiries many people, not only in the Security
Service, were investigated. BSince many of the
leads related to periods before and during the war,
many of those investigated were, by the later '50s
and early '60s, in senior appointments, inside and
outside Government service, The results of the
investigations of Philby and Blunt are now known,
There were good reasons for suspecting some others,
but it was not possible to secure evidence on which
charges could be founded., These suspects were

generally speaking moved to work where they had no




access to sensitive information or were asked to

resign, Many others were conclusively eliminated
from suspicion. The process of investigation
continued over many years, and has not ceased today:
whenever new information becomes available the
investigations are resumed.

D. The profile of Sir Koger Hollis was among

those that fitted some of the available leads. Others
fitted them too, including Philby and Blunt. None=
theless he had to be investigated, and he was, But
the case made out by the author of this book simply
does not stand up; the account of the investigation

e -y

contains serious inaccuracies; and on one

particularly important point, to which I shall come
shortly, he is entirely wrong,

6. The investigation took place during the years
after E_E-i, when Sir Roger Hollis retired, It did not
succeed in conclusively eliminating the possibility of
his having been an agent of the RIS, DBut no evidence
was found that incriminated him, and the conclusion
reached, when the investigation was completed in 1971,
was that the case against him was, putting it at its
lowest, not proven, and was not capable of being
further pursued unless fresh evidence was available,
Most of those concerned in the investigation would
have said, and would still say, that the balance of
probability was clearly against him having been an
agent of the RIS,

TiE One or two of those concerned, however,
challenged this view, and pressed for the investiga=

tion to be reopened, In 1974, therefore, Lord Trend

Lhee




was asked to review the whole of the investigation in
detail. Mr. Pincher's account of Lord Trend's

conclusions could hardly be more wrong. Reporting

in 1975, Lord Trend did not "name Hollis as the

likeliest suspect': on the contrary, he found that the

investigation had been thorough and as complete as it

was possible to make it; and he said that he could

e a.—r"-

find no reason, either in the evidence available at the
tirne or in the more general circumstances of
Sir Roger Hollis's character and career, for
dissenting from the decision reached in 1971,
e
8. That is how the matter rests. The
investigation would of course be reopened, if new
evidence came to light., But that is not now very
likely. The events in question took place 20 to 50
———
yea¥s ago., The trail is cold, and a new investigation
would be very unlikely to turn up new evidence or lead
to a definite conclusion. The thorough investigation
already made 10 to 15 years ago has been gone over in
detail by an independent reviewer; there is no
reason to suppose that another review today would
reach a different conclusion,
9. The generation of Burgess, Maclean, Philby
and Blunt has long since passed into retirement,
None of them has been at the centre of affairs or had
any real influence on security and intelligence
matters for at least 30 years. As Lord Trend has

said in his report, even if there was penetration

extending beyond the known cases in the years during

and after the war, it does not follow that there is




penetration now; indeed, the evidence points in the

opposite direction, The author of this book himself
acknowledges that recent security successes (like that

of Operation FOOT in 19'?1! would hardly have been

achieved, if the Security Service was penetrated, and
can find no evidence of current penetration, I know
of no reason to suppose or suspect that the Service
has been penetrated at any time for many years, I
have already referred to the continuing arrangements
in the Security Service to guard against penetration,

I can tell the House that my right hon., Friend the

Home Secretary and I have taken steps to satisfy
ourselves that these arrangements are well designed
and effective,

10. There is one last poipt. I can only sp&culatal.
about Mr. Pincher's motive for writing this book.
Perhaps he persuades himself that it is in the public

interest., But his book demanstrates all the dangers

and evils of trial by jnurnalis';!l:, Accusations as

grave as this should be made 1||::|.'|:11-!,r in due process of
ﬂ, subject to rules of evidence and under the
protection of the court for the .i;l'ights of the
defendant. To traduce any mah in this way, and
certainly to traduce anyone who is no longer living

and cannot defend himself, is, quite simply, not only

wrong but deplorable,




NOTES FOR SUPPLEMENTARIES

01, Will the Prime Minister identify the senior Security Service official code-
named PETERS?
Al, No. He is still living., I can, however, confirm that the investigations

eliminated him from any suspicion of having been an agent of the RIS,

e —
Q2. Will the Prime Minister comment on the other allegations in the book ?
A2, No. When people have neither confessed nor been prosecuted, it is not for

me or for this House to judge or comment.

Q3. Does the Prime Minister know what Mr, Pincher's sources were?
A3, Some of them he names. They include present and former Members of
S S etz

this House. Others are not named, but it certainly looks as if some of the

information could have come only from someone with first-hand knowledge of

_. Security Service records, A detailed investigation is being made, and any

' relevant evidence will be submitted to my right hon. Friend the Attorney General.
Q4, Will the investigations of past penetration be reopened in the light of this
book ?
A4, The book is being closely studied by the security authorities, It is in the
main, as it purports to be, an account of their investigations, and contains (as
far as can be discovered) no new information of security value, If closer
examination of it produces or suggests any new leads, they will of course be
followed up.
Q5. Have Ministers been kept informed on the investigation into the case
against Hollis ?

\ A5, Yes. Successive Prime Ministers and Home Secretaries have been told of

the fact that Sir Roger Hollis was investigated, of the conclusions of the

l investigation, andof Lord Trend's report of his review of the investigation,
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- SIR ROBERT ARMSTRONG

The Prime Minister has read with
considerable consern your minute A04690
of 17 February 1981 about Mr. Chapmnan
Pincher's forthcoming book on the
penetration of the security and

intelligence services.

She awaits your further advice
on the line the Government should take
wihhen the book is published.

C. A. WHITMORE

19 February 1981

SECRET AND PERSONAL




Ref, A04690

PRIME MINISTER S -

Chapman Pincher has written, and Sidgw‘ick and J_'.acksﬂn have accepted, a

book on the penetration of the security and intelligence services, and in particular
of the Security Service,

2. It gives a detailed account of a number of cases, including those of
Anthony Blunt, Guy Burgess, John Cairncross, Tom Driberg (Lord Bradwell) and
Captain Henry Kerby MP. But the most damaging material, and that which
constitutes the theme of the book, is the assertion that Sir Roger Hollis, who was

Director General of the Security Service from 1956 to 1965, was a spy. The book

also deals with the allegation that Sir Roger Hollis's Deputy, Mr. Graham Mitchell,
wWas a spy. BT

£ The case against Sir Roger Hollis, and the way in which both that and the
allegations against Mitchell are treated, are so detailed and accurate that they

could only have derived from a person or persons actually involved in the

e e e SR
investigations of those cases or from someone with access to the files of those
Lo g T e ——— ro = e = —l

investigations. The book will of course be examined for "fingerprints", but at

Mmﬂks as if the source must have been one or more of three people who
were concerned in the investigations, If the source could be identified conclusively,
the Attorney General would have to consider whether to take action under the

Official Secrets Act, because the breach of confidence is Erc:ft::und. But it would be

a very messy prosecution, if it came to that; and one of the suspects now lives
outside the jurisdiction.

4, It is clear that Chapman Pincher knows in detail not only about the case
against Hollis and the investigation of it, but also about the review of the

investigation conducted in 1974-75 by Lord Trend. He refers to this review.
et e

Like Jonathan Aitken in his letter to you last year, he distorts Lord Trend's
conclusion: he gives the impression that Lord Trend concluded that Hollis was
probably guilty, whereas of course Lord Trend's conclusion was that, while it was

not capable of proof, there was certainly no conclusive evidence that he was guilty

and the balance of probability was that he was not (he subsequently put that balance
m | i e

2t 80 to 20)a




D, The book is due to be published at the end of April, and is likely to be

serialised in the Daily Mail during the previous week. It is clearly likely to
e = e —

arouse a lot of interest, and to be very damaging to the morale of the Security
S 7 e s e i L | e e R e ]

Service.

b. I shall of course offer advice on the line which the Government should
take when the book is published; but it would be premature for me to offer any
advice at this stage, until it has been possible to carry out a detailed study of
the book and to form a more definite idea about who might have been the source
or sources for it. My present thinking is that it will probably be impossible to

take the usual line of "no comment!', On the other hand this is not like the case

of Blunt, where there was a definite confession of guilt and no possibility of
prosecution. We are dealing here with incﬂnclus;rnmteﬂal, no doubt dressed
up by Chapman Pincher to be as damaging as possible, and the possibility of
libel action by some of those named or referred to.

Te No doubt the publication of the book will lead to the usual clamour for
some kind of inquiry. We shall have to decide, nearer the time, whether such
an inquiry is desirable or inevitable or not. Thefactis, I think, that the trail is
now so cold that there is really no possibility of re-investigation of the Hollis

B i =
case or any other of the cases mentioned. All that one could really do would be
R S RS e

to invite some independent person - for instance, a judge - to review the
investigations that have been carried out. But that, of course, is exactly what
Lord Trend did six years ago. To have that job done again would inevitably call
in question the Government®s confidence in Lord Trend's review and the finding s

thereof.

ROBERT ARMSTRONG

17th February, 1981







25 June 1980

The Prime Minister has asked me to thank
you for your letter of 24 June 1980.

She is grateful to you for writing as you
did.

Nicholas Elliott, Esq.




THE GARDEN HOUSE

k STANFORD DINGLEY
READING
BERKSHIRE RGT 6LX

(0734) 744371
NICHOLAS ELLIOTT
r

AV 24th June 1980

Dia P?Anf.na i

The following may be already known to you. Just in case it
is not, I thought I would warn you of it:

(i) I was told over the week-end by someone who usually
gets his facts right

(a) that Anthony Blunt is writing his memoirs and
(b) that one of the Sunday's (probably the Sunday Times)
has bought the serial rights

| (ii) Sir Roger Hollis (now defunct), a former head of the
Security Services as you doubtless know, was under

, suspicion, before he died, both in Whitehall and

X Washington of working for the KGB. Harry Chapman
Pincher has discovered this; and I would think it must
now be known to a number of people cutside the relevant
services (past and present).

All this leads me alas to fear that the above could become
public before very long.
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Your minute of 1l1th’June, o Arat W &-'TJ L
2. I have now seen Lord Rawlinson and have put him in the picture on a

Privy Counsellor basis, He will not seek Chapman Pincher out; but I said that,

—

if Pincher came back to him, I thought that he might say that he had been
sufficiently interested in Pincher's story to make some inquiries, from which

he had learnt that the enquiries made had been thorough, and their outcome

was reasuring.
—

3. Lord Rawlinson said that Chapman Pincher had now parted company

with the Express newspapers and was free-lancing. The parting had not been

amicable, and he was like a bear with a sr::;e head. B i

-1_._% He also said that Pincher thought that Campbell and Penrose were minded
not to publish anything on this so long as Mr. Mitchell was still alive,

B Lord Rawlinson was obviously glad that his approach to the Prime
Minister had been taken seriously. He does not expect any response from her

in writing.

(Robert Armstrong)

20th June, 1980

CONFIDENTIAL




CONFIDENTTAL

10 DOWNING STREET

From the Principal Private Secretary

SIR ROBERT ARMSTRONG

I have shown the Prime Minister your minute A02313
of 10 June 1980 and the accompanying letter from
Lord Rawlinson.

The Prime Minister thinks that there would be advantage
if you saw Lord Rawlinson on a Privy Counsellor basis and
put him in the picture, in the knowledge that he would pass
on what he was told to Chapman Pincher,.

( C A WHITMORE )

11 June 1980
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Lord Rawlinson has asked me to convey the attached letter to the Prime

Minister. In it L.ord Rawlinson warns the Prime Minister that Chapman Pincher
is aware that Duncan Campbell and Barrie Penrose are working on stories about
Sir Roger Hollis - no doubt similar to those about which Jonathan Aitken wrote to
the Prime Minister earlier in the year. There is a strong hint that

Chapman Pincher would like to be put in a position to pre-empt Campbell and
Penrose, and would (for the sake of that) give a sympathetic presentation,

2. I should normally recommend a very long spoon indeed in dealings with
Chapman Pincher. This instance, however, might be the case for an exception
to the rule. Chapman Pincher will not wish to be scooped on his own territory
by Campbell and Penrose, and might quite like to be able to scoop them instead.

3 I think, therefore, that it is for question whether we should brief
Lord Rawlinson very much on the lines which we briefed Lord Charteris earlier

for his conversations with Mr. Jonathan Aitken. On this basis I might write to

(or, probably better, see) Lord Rawlinson on a Privy Counsellor basis, and put
him in the picture rather in the same way as we put Lord Charteris in the
picture, in the knowledge that he would pass on the relevant material to Pincher.

4, Perhaps I could have a word with the Prime Minister about this.

ROBERT ARMSTRONG

10th June, 1980

CONFIDENTIAL







From: The Rt. Hon. Lord Rawlinson, Q.C.

12 King’s Bench Walk,
Temple,

London, EC4Y 7EL
Tel: 01- 353 5892/6
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From: The Rt. Hon. Lord Rawlinson, Q.C.

12 King’s Bench Walk,
Temple,

London, EC4Y 7EL
Tel: 01- 353 5892/6

“'M.L. q_éb« Jo @ "ttwf

b Kond Whet o kmjshiu'\r
W tlean Juel he wld, hike To







. SECRET AND PERSONAL

Sir Robert Armstrong

I have shown the Prime Minister your
minute A01804 of 26 March about the
correspoudence with Mr. Jonathan Aitken,
M.P., about possible Soviet penetration of

he Security Service.

The Prime Minister thinks it an excellent

lea to write, as you propose, to Lord Charteris
She has, however, made a number of minor
changes to the draft letter, with a view to
softening it slightly, and I attach a copy of
the revised version. |

31 March, 1980.
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PERSONAL AND IN CONFIDENCE

DRAFT LETTER FROM SIR ROBERT ARMSTRONG TO
The Rt. Hon. THE LORD CHARTERIS OF AMISFIELD, GCB, GCVO, OEE.
The Provost's Lodge, Eton College, Windsor.

When we met the other day, vou told me about your
conversation with Jonathan Aitken,

I understand your concern about what he had been told, and
I am sure that the Prime Minister would not wanit you to think that
either his letter or the matters referred to in it had not been
taken seriously: they have been taken very seriously, and have
been the subject of full reports to the Prime Minister. Her
reply to the letter he sent her was brief, partly because of the
obvious difficulties of discussing such subjects, and partly
because the matters were not new to her.

It was pretty clear from Mr. Aitken's letter what the
sources of his information were - and what you have told me he
said to you confirms that. As I said, it was not new to us, and
in one fundamental respect (I say nothing of other respects) it
was wrong, It was Egglthe case that the repért to which he
referred confirmed the suspicions about the itwo men concerned.
Had Mr. Aitken's information on this point been right, his
concern would indeed have been justified.

The position is, briefly, that these matters have been
thoroughly investigated over a number of yvears; and the
investigations have been reviewed in detail, with the result
that they were confirmed as thorough and their conclusions

were endorsed,

/ 0f course
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Of course the investigation would immediately be

resumed if any new information were to come to light;

otherwise it is difficult to see anything more that could

usefully and sensibly be done.
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You will remember the long letter which Mr, Jonathan Aitken MP A
recently sent to the Prime Minister, about possible Soviet penetration in the 1""“'
Security Service and the rumours said to be circulating in Fleet Street and
Westminster. As I told you in submitting a draft reply, it was evident that

the source of the contents of Mr, Aitken's letter must directly or indirectly

be Mr. Stephen de Mowbray, with whom this matter is a King Charles's head,

2 It appears that Mr. Aitken felt that the Prime Minister's reply to him
was a brush-off. He recently approach Lord Charteris of Amisfield, as a
Member of the Privy Council, and asked him to draw the attention of the matter
to The Queen. Lord Charteris told Mr. Aitkin that he would certainly not
draw the matter to the attebtion of The Queen, but he said that he would mention
it to me. In telling me about this Lord Charteris said that he thought
Mr. Aitken was looking for ways of pursuing the m&tt;Ers in his letter; and he
said that he thought Mr., Aitken might respond favourably, if he was invited
by someone (e.g. the Secretary of the Cabinet) to come and say what his sources

were,

THIS IS A COPY. THE ORIGINAL IS
| RETAINED UNDER SECTION 3 (4
7 THE PUBLIC RECORDS ACT

3. Iam very reluctant either myself to see Mr. Aitken or to ask anybody

else to do so. On the other hand, I think that it might just be worthwhile my
writing a letter to Lord Charteris, which would in form be a letter responding
to his raising the matter with me, though it would be understood that he might
pass the gist of it - nothing in writing - on to Mr. Aitken. This would be a way
of getting it across to Mr, Aitken that the material in his letter had been taken
seriously; and that he was wrongly informed that the Trend Feport tended to

inculpate the two men concerned,

SECRET AND PERSONAL
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4, I have discussed this with Sir Howard Smith, who agrees that it would be
useful for me to write accordingly to Lord Charteris. I attach a draft of the
letter I propose to send.

5. I thought that I should give the Prime Minister a chance to comment,

before I proceed. Hence this minute to you,

(Robert Armstrong)

26th March 1980

a2=
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PERSONAL AND IN CONFIDENCE

DRAFT LETTER FROM SIR ROBERT ARMSTRONG TO
The Rt, Hon THE LORD CHARTERIS OF AMISFIELD, GCB
GCVO, OBE. The Provost's Lodge, Eton College, Windsor.

When we met the other day, you told me about your
conversation with Jonathan Aitken,

I understand your concern about what he had been told, and
Iam sure that the Prime Minister would not want you to think that
either his letter or the matters referred to in it had not been taken
seriously: they have been taken very seriously, and have been the
subject of full reports to the Prime Minister. Her reply to the
partly because the matters wer@

partly because of the obvious difficulties of

letter he sent her was brief,

discussing such subjects:-utjk

fo wn
It was pretty clear from Mr. Aitken's letter what the
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sources of his information were - and what you have told me
rel-
sald to you confirms that, As I said, mesae.af it was(new(_and in

one fundamental respect (I say nothing of other respects) it was
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wrong. It was not the case that the report to which he referred

confirmed the suspicions about the two men cﬂncerned; b

A —the regert came to the cos sion that the si»dng balgnce
of probabilify waw that neither of the men concersréd was whatAt
was—stlore—t houghfpossible that one-or other of them ghighghave
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been right, his concern would/have been justified; ae-his-infermration
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The position is, briefly, that these matters have been
thoroughly investigated over a number of years by competent

mﬂ%ﬁrmmm@w, and the

investigations have been reviewed in detail, with the result that they

were confirmed as thorough and their conclusions were endorsed,
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Of course the investigation would immediately be

resumed if any new information were to come to light; otherwise -

1

¥ ] L]

it is difficult to see anything more that could usefully and sensibly be

done.
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10 DOWNING STREET

From the Principal Private Secretary

SIR ROBERT ARMSTRONG ¢

The Prim

12 Minister has seen your
minute A0X421 of 18 Februsry 1982 about.
Mr, Jonathan Aitken’s letter of
31 January.

She agrees that a completely
non-committal reply on the lines of your
% £h

draft would be approprizte in
and I attach a copy of the |
has now sent to Mr, Aitk

21 February 1980
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21 February, 1980.

Dear Jonathan,

Thank you for your strictly private and
confidential letter of 31 January.

I was in fact aware of the allegations
to which you refer, and I can assure yau that
I was already briefed on these matters. You
will not expect me to comment on them, but I
am nonetheless grateful to you for making sure
that I knew about them.

Yours ever,

(SGD) MT

Jonathan Aitken, Esq., M.P.

94
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MR. WHITMORE E

You handed me the letter which was sent to the Prime Minister on

3lst January by Mr. Jonathan Aitken, MP,

. The letter summarises rumours circulating among journalists about
the penetration of MI5 by Soviet agents, and specifically about the possibility
that Sir Roger Hollis, Director General of MI5 from 1955 to 1964, and his

deputy Mr. Graham Mitchell, had been Soviet agents; and Mr. Aitken favours

the Prime Minister with his advice, not only to brief herself fully, but also to
prepare a House of Commons statement of great frankness, to set up a major
independent inquiry into the allegations, and to make a major reform of the
Security Services, amalgamating MI5 and MIé.

3. My predecessor gave the Prime Minister an account of the allegations
and suspicions about Sir Roger Hollis and Mr. Mitchell and about the way in
which they were investigated in the comprehensive briefing on Blunt and related
matters which he submitted with his minute of 8th May, 1979. DBriefly,
following the defection of Philby, a number of leads suggested that there had

been another Soviet agent at work in the Security Service. §Sir Roger Hollis

and Mr. Mitchell were two of the very few people whom these leads might have

fitted, The case of Mitchell was thoroughly investigated from March 1963 to
May 1964, and the conclusion was that the evidence was inadequate to support

a finding of ""guilty' and that he was more likely to be innocent than guilty.

The case was reopened again in 1968 and Mitchell himself was interviewed in
August 1970, after which Mitchell (who had retired in September 1963) was told
that the Director General was satisfied that he had not been a spy. Mitchell
ig still alive.

4, The investigation of the suspicions of Sir Roger Hollis did not begin
until 1968 and continued until 1971, MNo information was discovered to confirm
the suspicion of espionage, and the then Director General of the Security Service

was of the opinion that Hollis was not a spy. Hollis died in 1973; and no

further evidence has come to light since then to suggest that he was a spy.

-1-
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By The leads which it was thought might have pointed to Hollis or Mitchell
can all be accounted for no less plausibly in terms of known spies, including Blunt,
Philby and Burgess. Philby's own symptoms of nervousness before his

defection could be attributed to the knowledge (from his Soviet masters) that

Golitsyn had defected and was talking, no less readily than to a tip off from a

Hw,rpﬂtheli::al spy still in the Security Service.
6!
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He came to the conclusion that Mitchell had

probably been rightly cleared; that the case against Hollis was certainly

'"not proven', was not sufficient to support even a presumption that he was a spy -

the assessment indeed is that it is 80 per cent probable that he was not a spyr and
was not capable of being further pursued unless fresh evidence became available;
and that, while it was regrettable that the inquiries into the Hollis case had not
been started earlier and pressed forward more vigorously, there were no
grounds for regarding the investigations as deficient either in thoroughness

or impartiality.

Ta The conclusions were explained to Mr. de Mowbray., He did not dissent
from Lord Trend's views about the Mitchell and Hollis cases, he accepted that
there had been no irregularities in the investigation of the two cases and that
Lord Trend's inquiry had been objective and fair, and he accepted that no
further post-mortem of the past could now be expected. DBut his misgivings

about the conduct of the investigations were not fully allayed, and he sought

= -
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some assurances about the arrangements for the future. In particular, he asked
for and was given an assurance that Lord Trend or some other such independent
person would be brought in in the event of any future allegation of the kind in
question against a member of the Security Service or MI6, and that Lord Trend
would be kept in regular touch with the continuing investigation of the possibility
of penetration of the Security Service. He asked for, but was not given, an
assurance that those who (like himself) had been members of the original
Working Party which investigated the two cases should also have independent
access to Lord Trend. Mr. de Mowbray struck both Lord Trend and
Sir John Hunt as having an "air of fanaticism'' about him which failed to carry
much conviction. They did not think that anything would fully satisfy him other
than being put in charge of ""penetration" investigationg himself. In the hope of
convincing him that his anxieties had been taken seriously and considered at the
highest level, he was seen by the then Home Secretary (Mr. Jenkins) in
November 1975,

8. At the time he appeared to be reasonably satisfied; but he reopened the
matter in May 1976, and for the first time made it clear that he had been using
the two particular cases as a tactical means of enabling him to raise at the

highest possible level his anxieties not only about Soviet penetration of the

British Security and intelligence Services but also about the vulnerability of

- —

Western intelligence services to Soviet ""disinformation' techniques, and the

o

complacency of those in charge of the Services in face of that threat. He was

invited to supply a note on the basis of which his views on these matters could
be put to Ministers. This note - a 60-page handwritten document - reached my
predecessor in February 1978: Mr. de Mowbray had been preoccupied with
domestic problems - the break-up of his marriage and subsequent divorce.

9. This note was much less concerned with penetration of the Security

Service than with penetration of the Secret Intelligence Service, and set out in

full his fears about disinformation. It was examined by the agencies and by

Lord Trend. The note, with comments by the agencies on it, was submitted

to the Prime Minister, Mr. Callaghan, who discussed it at length and very

1y @

AND PERSONAL




AND PERSONA L

thoroughly with Sir John Hunt and the heads of the two agencies. As a result
Mr, Callaghan was reassured about the present state of the agencies and the
measures which they took to protect themselves from penetration. He was

not convinced that Mr. de Mowbray's allegations called for any further
investigations into past eventd; and he was reassured by what he was told about
current methods of recruitment, vetting and monitoring against penetration.
Mr. Callaghan said that, if Mr. de Mowbray gave publicity to his allegations,
he would be prepared to respond publicly on those lines,

10, Sir John Hunt then told Mr. de Mowbray that the Prime Minister had

gone into the whole question very thoroughly and in considerable detail, as a
result felt as reassured as he could be of the present situation, and did not
intend to pursue the matter further. Mr. de Mowbray said that he was still not
satisfied. He felt that there was a threat which was not being properly taken

into account by the Anglo-American intelligence community,

- ~-115 IS A COPY. THE ORIGINAL 1S
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12, Should the Prime Minister wish herself to read the Trend Report, there
should be a copy available to you: one was sent to 10 Downing Street on

5th August 1975 under cover of a note from my predecessor to the then Prime
Minister (the note itself ought not of course to be BEDWH to the present Prime
Minister, but there is no reason why the Trend Report should not be shown to
her). I can of course provide you with a copy if you need one.

13. I attach a factual note of comments by the Security Service on

Mr. Aitken's letter. :

14, Mr. Aitken's account of the allegations against Sir Roger Hollis and
Mr. Mitchell and of the Trend Report suggest that the source of the stories

which he is reporting must be Mr. de Mowbray. [ am afraid thatit looks very

much as if Mr. de Mowbray has been talking to Mr. Barry Penrose and
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Mr. David Leach, who are conducting the Sunday Times investigation into all

‘these matters following the Prime Minister's statement about Professor Blunt,
In one important respect Mr. Aitken's account of the matter is of course
incorrect: Lord Trend's Report did not conclude "that high level Soviet
penetration had taken place and that Hollis was probably the Soviet agent
responsible': indeed, its findings tended to the opposite conclusion, though
the most cautious assessment was that the case against Hollis was "not proven'l,
15, It seems likely that Mr. Aitken is writing his letter at the prompting
either of Mr. de Mowbray or of Mr. Penrose. In my judgment the Prime

Minister would be well advised not to comment in any way on the substance of

the letter. Whatever was said would presumably go back to Mr. Penrose and
be the object of further investigative treatment. We had better wait until he
has finished his investigations and published the result and then consider what (if

anything) should be done about it. I accordingly suggest a brief reply to

Mr. Aitken on the lines of the draft attached to this minute.
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16, It is for consideration whether the Prime Minister should invite

Mr. Gow to transmit her reply to Mr. Aitken, and should authorise Mr. Gow
to say to Mr, Aitken, as he does so, that Mr. Aitken has got hold of the wrong
end of the stick, and that the Trend Report, following a very full inquiry,

concluded that, although it was as always virtually impossible to prove a

negative, it certainly could not be proved that either Hollis or Mitchell had

been a Soviet agent and that the clear balance of pf;babilit}r was that neither of

them was., ButI think that even this partial lifting of the veil would probably be
ill-advised: it would be likely to whet the appetite of Mr. Aitken and those who
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would stand behind him for more, and to increase pressures for a full
independent inquiry. I suggest therefore that the Prime Minister sticks to

the completely non-committal reply proposed. "‘! %

(Robert Armstrong)

18th February, 1980
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DRAFT LETTER FROM THE PRIME MINISTER TO
JONATHAN AITKEN, Esq. MP

i
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Thank you for/ your strictly private and confidential

letter of 31st January.

I was in fact | ware of the allegations to which you
refer, and I can a.serre you that I was already briefed on
these matters. Yﬂu.'i will not expect me to comment on them,
but I am nuneﬂlelessi‘grateful to you for making sure that I

knew about them. }
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From: Jonathan Aitken, MP

HOUSE OF COMMONS
LONDON SWIA OAA
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